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Corporate Profile
NG

Our Company was established in the Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007. Our
Group's history dates back to 2001 when Hunan Yingde was established in the PRC.
Our Company’s Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 8 October 2009. Our Company wholly owns Yingde BVI which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is an investment holding company of

our Group.

Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier specialized in on-site gas supply in China in terms

of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 201 I.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site
and merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen,
nitrogen and argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those
whose premises are located on or in close proximity to our gas production facilities
and to whom we supply industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers generally
include liquid gas distributors and other industrial companies who purchase

industrial gases from us on a spot market basis from time to time.

We differentiate our on-site operation and merchant operation as well as the
revenue generated from the respective operations in accordance with the type of
customers to which we sell our gas products. In relation to the on-site operation, we
generate revenue by selling our gas products to those customers with whom we
have entered into long-term gas supply contracts. In relation to the merchant
operation, we generally generate revenue by selling our gas products (which are
produced from the remaining available capacity of our on-site production facilities as
well as our dedicated merchant production facilities) to local distributors on the
spot market. We also enter into gas supply contracts with a selected number of
merchant customers who have a stable and regular demand for our gas products.
Pursuant to such contracts, we supply gas products on a regular basis during the
term of the relevant gas supply contracts. The on-site production facilities referred
to in this report relate to those which we construct after having entered into long-
term gas supply contracts with industrial companies. The merchant production
facilities referred to in this report relate to those which we generally operate

without entering into long-term gas supply contracts with customers.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (our “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, referred to as our “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 201 1. | would like to express my gratitude

to our shareholders for your continuous support.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The global market experienced fluctuation in 201 |. Global economy saw a sharp
plunge in the second half of the year amidst the European debt crisis. Under
unfavourable global economic conditions, the growth of China's gross domestic

product slowed down.

Industrial gas is commonly used in various sectors. As a result, the performance of
the industrial gas industry was in line with the overall performance of the general
economy. The growth of merchant gas industry tended to decline along with the
slowdown of general economy in the second half year compared to the first half

year, in particular, in the last quarter of the year

BUSINESS REVIEW

Having established for ten years, we have become the largest independent on-site
industrial gas supplier in the PRC. With our extensive experience and excellent
professional team, our Group has established itself as a reliable gas provider and was
awarded with projects. As at the end of 201 |, our Group had 36 production facilities
in operation with a total installed oxygen capacity of 940,400 Nm?/hr.

During the past year, we further developed our on-site gas supply business and
constructed more production bases in strategic locations in the PRC. Apart from
iron and steel makers, our customer network was expanded to include chemical,
glass and nonferrous metal producers. As at the end of 201 |, we had 33 on-site gas
supply facilities in operation with a total installed oxygen capacity of 937,400 Nm®/hr.
For the merchant business, the market demand for oxygen and nitrogen remained
stable while the demand for argon was dampened in the second half of the year
when compared to the first half of the year. We have more than 1,000 customers,

most of them are located in highly-industrialised regions such as Jiangsu.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE @)

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2012, more facilities will be put into operation to further
expand our business coverage. We will also further expand our customer base by
seeking new customers from different industries. We will maintain our leading

position in the industry by providing the best gas service to our customers.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank our business partners and
customers for their support and trust. Meanwhile, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff for their efforts. On the 10th anniversary of our Company, we
commit to capitalize our success and we will strive to maximise the return to our

shareholders.

Zhongguo Sun
Chairman
I6 March 2012
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis

THEZRERE

On behalf of our Company’s management team, | am pleased to report our Group's

2011 results to our shareholders as follows:

INDUSTRY REVIEW

As the “12th Five-Year Plan" of China suggested energy saving and emission
reduction, various domestic industries increased the concentration of oxygen in the
combustion process and refined the oxygen supply process, so as to reduce energy
consumption. The outsourcing business of industrial gas was encouraged by the
demand of energy saving and emission reduction and environmental protection. This

brings new opportunities for the growth of industrial gas industry.

The demand of industrial gas grew at an annual growth rate of over 10% while only
30% to 40% of the market has been outsourced. According to the report issued by
industry association, the market size of oxygen and nitrogen were the largest among
all gases, and the global annual average demand for these gases amounted to
approximately US$10 billion. There will be a room for the growth of the market
share of gas industry in the future. Benefitting from the trend of outsourcing gas
production to professional gas supplier, the prospect of the domestic gas industry is

promising.

The global economic downturn in the second half of 2011 was reflected in the
market. As industrial gas was widely used, the performance of the industrial gas
industry was inevitably affected by the significant decline of the domestic economy

in the last quarter. As such, the retail price fluctuated and experienced a decrease.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economic performance was volatile in 201 |. Operation performance of
enterprises was adversely affected by the drop of investors' confidence in the face of
the uncertainties of external economic environment. Nevertheless, leveraging our
rich experience and excellent business foundation, our total revenue for the year

remained steady growth despite the unfavourable market conditions.
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THRIBMEREEB W R D @

The challenges faced by the iron and steel market in the PRC have not imposed
significant impact on the existing businesses of our Group. At the end of 201 |, the
Group had 36 facilities in operation and 23 facilities under development, 33 out of
36 facilities are on-site gas facilities. In addition, our project located in Inner
Mongolia, the largest on-site supply scheme in the world, has achieved outstanding
performance in 2011, laying a solid foundation for the business expansion of our

Group.

Our Group has become the largest independent on-site gas supplier in the PRC
since 2009. Our main gas products include oxygen, nitrogen and argon. For the year
ended 3| December 2011, our on-site gas supply operation contributed about
82.3% of our total revenue. However, affected by the unstable economic
environment and volatile market prices in the second half of the year the

performance of merchant gas business could not meet our expectation.

REVIEW OF ON-SITE GAS SUPPLY OPERATION

We are principally engaged in on-site gas supply, which generated approximately
82.3% of total revenue from operations. After years of continuing development and
with our professional management, we currently possess a stable and quality customer
base and have an established professional reputation in the industrial gas industry. We
build on-site facilities in close proximity to our on-site customers’ premises, in order
to ensure reliable and stable gas supply to such customers. We generally enter into
long-term take-or-pay gas supply contracts with on-site customers so as to ensure the

stability of our Group's operations and income.

As at 31 December 2011, our Group had a total of 36 gas supply facilities in
operation and 23 gas production facilities under development. The total installed
capacity amounted to 940,400 Nm?/hr in terms of installed oxygen capacity,
representing a year-on-year growth of 35.7%. During the period under review, our
Group sold 10,253 million Nm?* of industrial gas in aggregate, representing a year-on-
year growth of 51.5%. The total sales volume of oxygen products, nitrogen products
and argon products were 5515 million Nm? 4,194 million Nm? and 106 million
Nm? respectively. It is expected that the total installed capacity will exceed
1,600,000 Nm*hr in 2014 upon completion of all production facilities currently

under development.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

BABAMMBATSHEEANZR - BHA
EERAEBUBAAYE -HZE2011FEK -
AEEAGERBEEREELEEE  R23(E
RIBIEEEER o HP36MEIEREEERNRET
ABEBRRGHARME - HUFR - A&E
RARHAREERAZANRSHAEER
01MERFER  AARENEBRRRAER
go

AREB2009F BEKABASRABIRGR
BHER FZLEERAER ARRSE
RoHBE20MF12831BLEE  XARG
RBHERAGREBEEBERALS2.3% °
BETHEFIXRABEBITRELERREY
2 TEABEBAEXMBSEREDMKR
RINFEAG o

AERBREXREEE

AEEIZUERGRABUE  WARRAE
BRIAKB23% - HEFHEXRREXE
BT A&ERKHERENEETPAR -
RBTERBITFANERAE - AREER
SHRRTFBEY ML ERRRSERREN
EEREFPRENERBELHER - FRE
—REFRGEPITURPRNTERRAH -
BRAREZERRARE -

R2011E12A318  REEHBIEEEE
EBMEEREREIERENEERE - U
ERERASE  BERAE 594040012
ELFK N BEFEMI5.7%  REE

R AEEAHEE10,253F BZET H X
TERE BEFRPEMS1.5% ERE

B ARERRERERNEHEESFA
5515 BIREY K « 4,148 BREL K
R106EBIEE FK - BHIE2014F 5
AMMERHREBHRERERTER  BERAS
148 181,600,0004Z %37 /7 K //)NBF o



CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
THASREREBEBNRR DT @

EXPANSION BY NEW PROJECTS BRNEBEERRER

As of 31 December 201 |, we signed new long-term on-site gas supply contracts and BE2011F12A318 1L - AEERTHOTR
HRSREANRIRERAARERBERF

our expected installed oxygen capacity as follows:

Location

FEESE

Anhui 2

Anhui Z 8

Fujian f8 22

Hebei il 1t

Hebei ;7 3k

Inner Mongolia A5 &

Inner Mongolia RE &

Jiangsu /L&
Jiangsu )T &k
Jiangsu ST &k
Liaoning & &
Shaanxi BR 78
Shanxi LI 78
Shanxi 1Ll 78
Sichuan 79)1|

Sichuan P9I
Tianjin X2
Xinjiang #7528

Industry of customer

RRGFmIT%

Glass 338
Nonferrous metal 5 & & &
Nonferrous metal & & & /&
Steel #ff &
Heavy equipment Z i i
Steel #f &
Steel 3 &

Steel #f &
Steel 3 ]
Steel i &
Steel #f &
Steel 3 &
Steel i &
Steel #f &
Steel 3 &

Nonferrous metal B & & B
Steel 8
Steel 8l

EmT :

Expected installed
oxygen capacity
(Nm?/hr)

B EREHRE
(BEIL K,/ NEF)

17,500
16,000
16,000
60,000
5,000
30,000
15,000 (Phase 1 —£§)
27,000 (Phase 2 —#3)
32,000
30,000
60,000
60,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
30,000 (Phase 1 —H3)
40,000 (Phase 2 —#3)
10,000
35,000
13,000
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CEOQO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (ontinued)

THRAKBEREEEBF R R D @

Market Share in the PRC on-site gas supply market

THASREHETEERR

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%

20%

THEEE (MUBRARTE)

Market Share (by reveune)

10%

0%

2008 2009 2010

(Year ended 31 December)
(BZ12B31HILLEE)
Source: SAl Report
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Leveraging on our effective market policy, effective control over cost and
expenditure, development of business, devotion from our management and staff, we
recorded a slight increase in our production and sales compared to 2010. Our

Group recorded a steady growth in 201 1.

For the year ended 3| December 201 I, our turnover increased by RMBI,235 million
to RMB4,240 million from RMB3,005 million in 2010. The increase in turnover is
mainly attributable to the Inner Mongolia project which commenced operation in
the fourth quarter of 2010 operated in full in 2011 and eight new production

facilities commenced operation in 201 I.

In addition, our Group recorded profit attributable to equity shareholders of our
Company of RMB831 million (2010: RMB577 million). The earnings per share was
RMBO0.460 (2010: RMB0.319).

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
THEAZNREREEEBNWE DT @

TURNOVER PN

Our turnover consists of proceeds from the sale of industrial gas products. Our ~ BPIMBABEHEIXERBERNAER
turnover is recognized when our gas products are delivered to a customer's B HfINUAREFNREERTEZRF
premises and such customer has accepted the goods in which we have transferred HOEMBFPRARXEmELRRARIEEZRS
the related risks and rewards of ownership. HERERREFERER -

The turnover figures represent the aggregation of the invoiced value of goods sold, WABFRABEERENHEEEmERR

net of value-added tax. Our turnover increased by 41.1% from RMB3,005 million for B ARAIMBABEZE2010F12A318 1k

the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMB4,240 million for the year ended 31 FEHARE3000BETEMII%EHE

December 201 1. 201ME12A31B LEREHARB42408 8
T o
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
THARASBREREEENRR DT @

The table below sets out turnover generated from our on-site and merchant  FREIIRAREHERGEARTERFH

customers for the years indicated: FEHA

Year ended 3| December

BZ12831ALEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR %) AR®FT (%)
Turnover KA
On-site 5 3,487,923 82.3 2,384,091 79.3
Merchant =& 752,352 17.7 620,842 207
Total et 4,240,275 100.0 3,004,933 100.0

The table below sets out the weighted average unit price of gases sold to our  FRBIRFARENMEMHZTEZTFHEN
merchant customers for the years indicated: METHERES -

Year ended 3| December
BE12ANALEE
2011 2010
Unit price (RMB/Nm?)
BAERARE/BELF K

Oxygen a8 1.05 091

Nitrogen AR 0.83 072

Argon a8 3.37 4.03

Weighted average unit price D19 B AL B4R 1.36 .45
10 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2011



CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
THASREREBEBNRR 2T @

COST OF SALES

Our cost of sales comprises utility expenses, depreciation expenses for property,
plant and equipment related to production, staff costs for our production team and
other expenses. Utility expenses, mainly consisting of electricity expenses, comprised
85.5% and 88.7% of our total cost of sales for the years ended 31 December 201 |
and 2010 respectively. Depreciation and amortization expenses relate primarily to
property, plant and equipment we own and are calculated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of these assets. Staff costs mainly relate to salaries,
bonuses, benefits and contributions that we pay to our employees or make for the
benefit of our employees in our production team. Other expenses primarily consist

of other consumables as well as repair and maintenance.

Cost of sales increased by 51.5% from RMBI,841 million for the year ended 31
December 2010 to RMB2,789 million for the year ended 3| December 2011 which
was mainly driven by greater turnover. Cost of sales as a percentage of turnover
increased from 61.3% for the year ended 31 December 2010 to 65.8% in for the
year ended 31 December 201 |, mainly because the Inner Mongolia project operated
in full this year. Given the size of this project, the cost of sales is comparatively

higher than that of other projects.
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THREARBELREEENHRRE D @)

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the aforesaid, our gross profit increased by 24.7% from RMBI,164
million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMBI,451 million for the year
ended 31 December 201 . Our gross profit margin decreased from 38.7% for the
year ended 3| December 2010 to 34.2% for the year ended 31 December 201 |.
The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the operation of the Inner

Mongolia project and the decrease in average merchant price.

2,000
1,800
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200

(RMB million) (AR¥EET)

ENREANR

BEREXA - EFMBEE2010512A31H
EFEMARE 1646 BTEM24.7%EEE
01MERANBEEFENARE14518E
e EFRBEE2010512A3MBILFEEN
38.7%RMALEEE2011F12B31B IEEER
342% EFEMTREIZRANRAEHIER
RERTETHERTRAN -

2008 2009 2010 2011

(Year ended 31 December)
(BZE12A31BLEE)

OTHER REVENUE

Other revenue mainly includes subsidy and grant from local government authorities.

SELLING EXPENSES

Our selling expenses primarily consist of freight charges for distribution and logistics,
travelling expenses and staff costs in connection with hiring and maintaining our
sales team across different regions in the PRC. Selling expenses increased by 127.6%
from RMB58 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMBI32 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011, mainly reflecting the fast expansion on the

merchant gas market.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
THEZBREREEETWE 2 @

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses primarily consist of staff costs in connection with hiring
and maintaining our management and administrative staff at our headquarters and
production plant level, travel and entertainment, external consulting fees and
impairment loss of accounts receivable and other non-current assets. Administrative
expenses decreased by RMB83 million from RMB322 million for the year ended 31
December 2010 to RMB239 million for the year ended 31 December 201 I, mainly
due to 2010 has included RMBI79 million one-off impairment loss of Zhangjiagang

Yingde as disclosed in note 5(c) to consolidated financial statements.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS AND OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, our profit from operations increased by 38.8% from
RMB786 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMBI1,091 million for the

year ended 31 December 2011, while operating profit margin remained stable.

FINANCE INCOME

Our finance income mainly consists of interest income from bank deposits and
finance income on receivables under finance lease and exchange gain.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs primarily consist of interest payments for our loans with banks

and other financial institutions, finance charges on obligations under finance lease .

Finance costs slightly decreased 0.8% from RMBI128 million for the year ended 3|
December 2010 to RMBI127 million for the year ended 31 December 201 I,

EEEA
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THEAHBELEEEFR®RE DT @)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses increased 8.1% from RMB135 million for the year ended 3|
December 2010 to RMBI46 million for the year ended 3| December 201 |

primarily due to the increase in profit from operations.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, our profit attributable to the equity shareholders
increased 44.0% from RMB577 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to
RMB831 million for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests improved from a loss of RMB44
million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to a profit of RMB5 million for the
year ended 31 December 201 I.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FREHER

FrERERAEZ2010F12A31B IEFEHA
RE135F &L 1% EEE2011512A31
ABEEEMAREI146EET  TERARKE

BRI

AAERBREARGRE

ER EX - ARBMES A ARGENE
REZE2010F12A31BILEFENARKSTTE
BT M4 0%ZEHE201MF12A31B LF
EMARBKSIABEET -

FERRREERES

R FEEGEEAEE2010F12A 318
TEENBRARBMUMBETHEARAE
201ME12AMBLEEEMEZARBSEE

7T|:o

BUERRECERRE

As at 3| December

RI128318
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Trade receivables FEUBR X 447 964 332,695
Bills receivable e 238,519 153,728
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RERE (20,508) (20,437)
Deposits and other receivables e kEMEKKIEA 363,256 282,938
1,029,231 748,924

Our trade and other receivables increased from RMB749 million as at 31 December
2010 to RMBI,029 million as at 31 December 201 |, primarily due to the increase in
turnover and projects under construction. The number of our production facilities in
operation increased from 28 as at 3|1 December 2010 to 36 as at 31 December
201 1.
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Turnover of trade receivables slightly decreased from 34 days during the year ended
31 December 2010 to 33 days for the year ended 31 December 2011 which was in

line with the payment terms for our on-site customers'’ trade receivables.

The following table sets forth the turnover of our trade receivables for the years

indicated:

EWERAERHEE2010F12A3181LE
BHMRBEHEHE20ME12A31BLEE
§33%  EREUCRIZH AR F ZIRR A
o

TREIRFRFE O RACRF BRI :

Year ended 3| December

BZNA3IALEE

2011 2010
Turnover of trade receivables (days)* W EREE (R&) * 33 34
Note: B3t -
k Calculated on the average of the beginning and ending trade receivables balances for * RARFEEMS  BAFEFVRFRAEK
the year, divided by turnover for the year, multiplied by 360 days for a year in respect of BRTHER  RUZFENRE  BRUA—
the years indicated. F360HFE °
BANK AND OTHER LOANS RORECER
As at 3| December
RI2A31H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETR
Short-term loans RHER 320,000 370,000
Current portion of long-term loans RHAERH AN H 795,520 413,963
1,115,520 783,963
Long-term portion of long-term loans RESEFHRBH D 2,084,823 1,132,137
3,200,343 1,916,100

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying value of assets secured for bank and other
loans were RMB2,346 million (2010: RMBI,912 million).

R2011E12A318 » RRTTREMEFIE R
MEEREBEAARE23468E 7T (2010
F£:ARB19128& 1) o
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have historically met our working capital and other capital requirements
principally from equity provided by our shareholders, cash generated from
operations, cash at bank and in hand and through short-term and long-term

borrowings from banks.

As at 31 December 2011, the total assets of our Group was approximately
RMB9,825 million, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB2,190 million. The
cash at bank and in hand was RMB958 million, representing a decrease of RMBI2
million over the previous year. The current ratio of our Group was 85.3%. The
gearing ratio of our Group which is calculated at total liabilities divided by total

assets was 49.1%.

The Group has to maintain a suitable level of liquidity to finance the daily operation,
capital expenditure and repayment of borrowings. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB375,609,000. In 2012 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group is primarily
dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations to meet
its debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain adequate external
financing to meet its committed future capital expenditures. As at 31 December
2011, the Group had banking facilities with several PRC commercial banks providing
loan finance up to approximately RMB886 million, of which approximately RMB715

million was utilised.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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We have carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for
the twelve months ending 31 December 2012. Based on such forecast, we have
determined that adequate liquidity exists to finance the working capital and capital
expenditure requirements of the Group during that period. In preparing the cash
flow forecast, we have considered historical cash requirements of the Group as well
as other key factors, including the availability of the above-mentioned loan finance
which may impact the operations of the Group during the next twelve-month
period. We are of the opinion that the assumptions and sensitivities which are
included in the cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions
in regard to future events, these are subject to inherent limitations and uncertainties

and some or all of these assumptions may not be realised.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for the construction of new

production facilities and purchase of property, plant and equipment.

The annual total capital expenditure for 201 were RMB2,178 million (2010:
RMB1,930 million), principally comprised expenditures for the construction of new
production facilities and purchase of property, plant and equipment, which were
financed by a combination of our internal cash flow and bank borrowings.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details on the contingent liabilities of our Group and our Company are set out in
note 28(c) and 28(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

We aim to consolidate and further strengthen our position as the leading domestic

independent on-site industrial gas supplier in the PRC.
In order to achieve this, we intend to pursue the following strategies:

*  capitalize on the outsourcing trend and consolidate and further strengthen our

leading position in the outsourcing on-site industrial gas market in China;

BMEAEEEE2012F12A318 L1218 A
MRS RERAETTHENER - REEL
B AMRREKENRYE R ARMNZ
HRNEELESRBEALRIFR - ERER
EREBERE - HMAERIERTAKENE
PREFHKMEMTIERE  HPEFELAT
REYEASEARR12(EA PREEENERD
RHREE - ZMRA  ReRERUMBEN
BREBEERAEN - ERENAARRE
NABAERAR - o2 BNRRZE AR
TEERM -

BXRX

BARXIERRERNAERERBEY
¥ BERREBHXH -

01MFEN2FEARAXBERARB2,1788
B (2010 : AR¥1,93058T) ' T 28
ERERTEERBREENE  BEREEN
T AR RRBRITERIM -
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*  "Go Deep” and “Go Wide" to develop our business and expand our business

network;

*  further enhance and expand our target markets through industry

diversification;

*  enhance our competitive strength in providing customized, unique and efficient
solutions to our customers through continuous innovation and research and

development; and
*  continue to attract and retain highly skilled professionals.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

Human resources and information technology have been essential to our Group’s
success. Our staff is crucial assets of our Group. As such, we review our
remuneration policy from time to time to ensure it remains competitive. We have a
balanced appraisal system to evaluate the staff’s performance. For the long-term
development of all concerned, we provide relevant training to our staff, such as
providing financial supports to our staff for their further education and carrying out
relevant trainings for our management. We have operated a training and research
centre in Hangzhou, where our staff could acquire more knowledge on industry

safety and technology.

As at 31 December 201 |, our Group had 2,597 employees (2010: 1,442 employees).
The increase in headcount was mainly a result of the commencement of production
at eight new production facilities in 2011 and the recruitment of talents for the

development of the Company.

We believe that our Group's strong growth and maturity is credited to the
expertise of our high-caliber staff and their full support to our Group's development
strategy. Our Group values each staff member, and therefore put forward a people-
oriented governance philosophy, endeavoring to provide our staff with an excellent
working environment and a sound promotion system, and to offer newly promoted
staff comprehensive position-specific training, with a view to fostering a sense of
belonging among staff members and propping up their passion at work so that they

may provide clients with higher quality services.
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EXCELLENT MANAGEMENT

Our senior management and senior technicians have extensive experience in the
operation of industrial gas enterprises, as well as industry knowledge and know-how,
thereby leading our Group's businesses to head towards greater success. In addition
to retaining management personnel, we also continue recruiting high-caliber
technicians and improving our operation systems and production technologies, in
order to provide customers with the best gas supply management solutions and

other professional services.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of RMBO. |3 per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: RMBO. 10 per share).

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Communication with Stakeholders

Our Group’s investor relations team is devoted to enabling the most effective
communication between our Group, shareholders, the financial community and
other stakeholders. The Group adheres to the best practices of high transparency
and consistency in the disclosure of information whether the market is favorable to
the industrial gas sector or otherwise. Our investor relations team is very pleased to
have earned the recognition from shareholders, investors and analysts on our
Group's integrity in communicating our Group's strategies and performance at the
earliest date in 201 1. We frequently reported to the management team and relevant
departments about stakeholders' comments and opinions so that we could keep
improving our efficiency and performance, with the ultimate goal of generating
higher returns for our shareholders. Communication between the stakeholders and

our Group is a two-way process.
Providing updates to stakeholders through the following channels:

— announcements and notices published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, our Company website, and/or dispatched to our shareholders

pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

— our financial reports;
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— our annual and extraordinary general meeting, attended by top management

representatives and directors; and
— investors conferences and meetings.
Encouraging feedback from stakeholders through channels such as:

—  face-to-face dialogue at our annual and extraordinary general meeting;

— email exchanges with stakeholders. We also replied email enquiries from
stakeholders directly. If it was a matter of general interest to stakeholders, we
would seek to address it in subsequent corporate communication to all

stakeholders; and

— site visits. We have organized over ten site visits for the stakeholders to inspect

our production facilities across China in 201 I.

We collected and reported to the management team regularly about stakeholders’

comments and suggestions on our operations.

We are grateful to all stakeholders who offered us support and provided us with
feedback during 201 I. If any stakeholder has questions or comments on our work,

please contact us at information@yingdegas.com.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, more production facilities will commence operation and our
existing network will further expand in 2012. In addition, our Group will further

enhance business transparency and strengthen risk management.

We will conduct research and improve our existing technologies and continue to
identify quality customers in the industries which we have already served by
leveraging on the outsourcing trend of gas business. We will also endeavor to

expand our customer base to cover other industries.

Pursuing the above goals, we will strive for outstanding performance in 2012 and

reciprocate our shareholders with admirable return.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

Mr. Zhongguo Sun, aged 48, was initially appointed as the chairman, chief executive
officer and an executive director of our Company on 12 November 2007 and was
subsequently re-elected as a director of our Company on 19 May 2010. Mr. Sun was
one of the founders of our Group and has been a director and the general manager
of our Group since 2001. Mr. Sun is responsible for the overall management and
strategy of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than ten years experience in the industrial
gas industry. Prior to establishing our Group, Mr. Sun was the business manager of
applied gas solution at BOC Group Plc,. Mr Sun received a Master of Science in

Mechanical Engineering from the University of Pittsburgh in 1989.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Xiangti, aged 53, was initially appointed as an executive director of our
Company on 12 November 2007 and was subsequently re-elected as a director of
our Company on 19 May 2010. Mr. Zhao was one of the founders of our Group and
has participated in our management, business development and expansion since
October 2001. Mr. Zhao is responsible for domestic finance planning and support in
the PRC within our Group. Mr. Zhao has years of experience in the industrial gas
industry. Mr. Zhao received a Bachelor of Engineering from Hebei Science and

Technology University in 1982,

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, aged 60, was appointed as an executive director of our
Company on 20 May 2010 and was subsequently re-elected as a director of our
Company on 26 May 201 1. He is also the chief operating officer of our Company.
Mr. Strutt was one of the founders of our Group and has been the deputy general
manager responsible for the overall operational aspects of our Group since
establishment. Mr. Strutt has more than 20 years experience in the industrial gas
industry. Prior to establishing our Group, he held various positions at BOC Group
Plc,. Mr. Strutt received a Bachelor of Science with Honors in Materials Science from
the University of Sussex in 1975 and a Master of Business Administration from the
University of Leeds in 2001. Mr. Strutt is a member of the Institute of Materials,
Minerals and Mining, and is a registered member of the United Kingdom Engineering

Council — Chartered Engineer.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Zhao, aged 43, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company on 12 September 2009 and was subsequently re-elected
as a director of our Company on 19 May 2010. Mr. Xu is currently the chairman of
Cathay Life Insurance Company Limited, which is a joint venture in the PRC
between China Eastern Air Holding Company and Cathay Life Insurance Company
Limited, a publicly listed company in Taiwan. Mr. Xu is also currently the chief
financial officer of China Eastern Air Holding Company and a supervisor of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has more than ten years experience
in the accounting and finance areas. Mr. Xu received a Bachelor degree in Molding
from Chongging University in 1991 and a Master degree in Professional
Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2005. Mr. Xu is a
certified public accountant in the PRC.

Mr. Zheng Fuya, aged 45, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company on 12 September 2009 and was subsequently re-elected
as a director of our Company on 26 May 201 1. Mr. Zheng was a director of
Comtech Group, Inc,, a company listed on the NASDAQ and has since | January
2008 served as the chief financial officer of the same company. Mr. Zheng was
previously vice president of travel service at eLong, Inc., one of the leading online
travel service companies in China and listed on the NASDAQ, where Mr. Zheng was
responsible for the overall operation of eLong Inc’s travel services. Mr. Zheng has
more than ten years experience in the service industry. Mr. Zheng received a
Bachelor of Business Administration majoring in accounting from City University of
New York in 1994.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr.Wang Ching, aged 56, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company on 4 December 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as
a director of our Company on |9 May 2010. Dr. Wang has more than 20 years of
working experience in global financial industry specialising in asset management,
direct investment, corporate finance, equity and fixed income trading/sales with
particular focus in the U.S. and the Greater China region. Dr. Wang is currently the
managing director of Shanghai International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd, a
licensed corporation registered with Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission(HKSFC), the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai
Growth Investment Limited, an investment fund company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange(HKEX Stock Code: 770). He also serves as independent non-
executive directors for several HKEX listed firms, in which he advises the top
management on business strategies, financial development and internal control. Dr.
Wang had served as the CEO of the Investment & Proprietary Trading Group for Jih
Sun Financial Holding in Taiwan, Chairman of FENB Securities in U.S., Managing
Director of SinoPac Securities (Asia) Hong Kong, Managing Director of |S Cresvale
International Securities, Director of Investment Banking of Standard Chartered Bank
in Hong Kong, and Associate Director of Bear Stearns & Co., Inc.in New York . Dr.

Wang received his Ph.D. in Finance from Columbia University in New York.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Zhongguo Sun - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Director and Chairman’.

Mr. Zhao Xiangti - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Directors”.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt - please refer to his biography under the sub-section

headed - “Executive Directors”.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing, aged 33, joined our Group on | July 2008 and is chief financial
officer and company secretary of our Group. Ms. Wong has over ten years of
accounting experience in the industrial sector. Prior to joining our Company, Ms.
Wong was the group chief financial officer of Orange Sky Entertainment Group
(International) Holdings Limited, an investment holding company with subsidiaries
engaging in media business in the PRC. She was previously employed as the financial
controller of Avex China Company Limited, a PRC joint venture company
established by Orange Sky Entertainment (International) Holdings Limited and Avex
Group Holdings Inc., which is a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. Ms.
Wong was also previously employed as a manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms.
Wong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of Hong
Kong. She is also undertaking an EMBA course at the China Europe International
Business School. Ms.Wong became a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in 2003.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Wong Sze Wing - please refer to her biography under the sub-section headed -

“Senior Management".
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of our Company and of our Group for the year ended 31 December

2011.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Our Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong is at Suite 4313, Tower
One, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong and has its registered office at Cricket

Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY'I-1111, Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
Based on the research information in the SAl Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier specializing in on-site gas supply in China in

terms of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site
and merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen,
nitrogen and argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those
whose premises are located on or in close proximity to our gas production facilities
and to whom we supply industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers are
generally liquid gas distributors who purchase industrial gases from us on a spot

market basis from time to time.

The analysis of our Group's turnover is set out in note 4 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 55.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
Our Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of RMBO. 13 per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 3| December 2011 (2010: RMBO.10).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our

Group is set out on page 147.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of our Group and our Company during the year are set
out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 26(a) to the

consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Our Company’s total distributable reserves at 31 December 2011 amounted to
RMB2,709 million (2010: RMB2,915 million).

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in the share capital of our Company during the year ended 3|

December 201 | are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in our Group's property, plant and equipment are set out in note || to

the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND CAPITALIZATION OF INTERESTS

Details of borrowings of our Group during the year are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of our Group’s capitalized interests
expenses and other borrowing costs during the year are set out in note 5(a) to the

consolidated financial statements,

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Details of the retirement benefit plans of our Group are set out in note 5(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Pursuant to the Board resolution passed on 7 January 2011, the Company
repurchased 2,402,500 shares of its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of RMBI2 million in January 201 1.The lowest and the
highest price paid were HKD5.60 per Share and HKD5.70 per Share respectively. All

the Shares repurchased have been cancelled subsequently.

Saved as disclosed above, neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year

ended 31 December 201 1.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a resolution of the
shareholders on 12 September 2009 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on
12 September 2009. Unless it is terminated by the Board or our shareholders in
general meeting in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years on the
date which it becomes unconditional. After the period, no further options will be
granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
full force and effect to exercise any subsisting options granted prior to the expiry of
this ten year period or otherwise as handled in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme.The amount payable by a participant upon acceptance of
a grant of option is RMBI.00. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer any
employee, management member or director of our Company, or any of our
subsidiaries and third party service providers the options to subscribe for shares on
the terms set out in the Share Option Scheme.The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize
them to remain with us and to give effect to our customer-focused corporate
culture, and to motivate them to strive for our future development and expansion,

by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in our Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued shares as
at the date of approval of the Share Options Scheme (ie. a total of 180,923,250

shares).
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No option may be granted to any one person such that the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of options granted and to be granted to
that person in any |2 month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1%
of our issued share capital from time to time, unless the approval of our

shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable for each share to be subscribed for under an option upon
exercise shall be determined by the Board and notified to a proposed beneficiary at

the time of offer of the option and shall be not less than the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s

daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant; and
(c) the nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum period(s) for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. However, at the time of grant of the

options, our Company may specify any such minimum period(s).

As at 31 December 2011, no options have been granted pursuant to the Share

Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of our Company during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:
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EX

ARAEFARBERFREH EEMT :

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer, Zhongguo Sunk 4 (ERRITIRAEE
re-elected/appointed on 19 May 2010) R2010%F5H19H
BE/EZRT)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti (re-elected/appointed on 19 May 2010) HIERBLE (R 2010F5H 198
HE/EET)
Mr. Chen Yan (resigned on 30 August 201 1) =g (R 201168 A 308
& )
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt (re-elected/appointed on 26 May 201 1) Trevor Raymond (R 2011%5H26RH
Struttst 4 BE/EZRT)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Xu Zhao (re-elected/appointed on 19 May 2010) RBTE (R 2010F5A198
g/ REM)
Mr. Zheng Fuya (re-elected/appointed on 26 May 201 1) BEExE (R 20116F5H26H
/BRI
Dr.Wang Ching (re-elected/appointed on 19 May 2010 ) FRiEL (R 2010F5H 198
HE/EET)

REARERFME - HARLERIREL
RREERREFAE LHERE EFEE
RYFEEBEREEE -

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhao Xiangti and Dr.
Wang Ching shall retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EXEEENHRENE23R -

Brief biographical details of directors are set out on pages 2| to 23.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with our Company or any member of our
Company which is not determinable by our Company within one year without the

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to our Group's business to which our
Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a
party and in which a director of our Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during

the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was our Company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the directors of
our Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, our Company or any other body corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of |8, were granted any right to subscribe
for the equity or debt securities of our Company or any other body corporate or

had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF
OUR COMPANY AND OUR ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of our Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
our Company and our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were required to be entered in the register kept by our Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules

contained in Appendix |0 were as follows:
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Approximate

percentage

Name Nature of interest Number of Shares of shareholding

=1 EEME REERGBE BRENED L

(Note)

(P &E)

Mr. Zhongguo Sun Beneficiary of a trust 295,200,000 (long position) 16.34%
Zhongguo Sun’t & SRR @A 295,200,0008% (}F &)

Mr. Zhao Xiangti Deemed interest, 262,021,585 (long position) 14.50%

HIEE LA interest of controlled company

RIEFE S (25 2P #D) 262,021,5850% (47 2)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt Founder of a discretionary trust 181,661,461 (long position) 10.05%

Trevor Raymond Struttt & £ LR 0] AVUN

Note: There were 1,806,830,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 201 1.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 201 [, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of our Company or their associates (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) had any interest or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of our Company or our associated corporations,
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
required to be notified to our Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

181,661,461 1% (17 &)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

OF OUR COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of our Company) had notified our Company of interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept by our Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the

SFO as follows:

FERRREMATREG REBR S
MEZRKXR

B GESH RGO EXVEEI6KATERT
ENARRRIZTMATR - R20115F12H31
B UTAT(RRRAINEZFXZRITHAER
RN B BAARR AR EH B A RAIRM HAE
AROMEEIABLT :

Approximate

Number of percentage

Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding

=1 BERME FrERR N EE BRENED L

(Note)

(P =E)

Baslow Technology Limited Beneficial owner 181,661,461 (long position) 10.05%
ESHEEA 181,661,461 8% (37 &)

Baslow Resources Limited Deemed interest, interest of 181,661,461 (long position) 10.05%

controlled company

BIERA LS (1250 Al 181,661,461 8% (37 2)

Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 295,200,000 (long position) 16.34%
BEaSBAA 295,200,0008% (47 8)

Li Hongmei Founder of a discretionary trust 295,200,000 (long position) 16.34%
FRBR PREFORILA 295,200,0008% (47 &)

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Approximate

Number of percentage
Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding
=1 EEME RERROHE BRENED
(Note)
(Bt &E)
Yang Yonggang Deemed interest, interest of 261,129,585 (long position)
kAl controlled company
RIERA S (1252 A ER) 261,129,5850% (41 &)
Beneficial owner 892,000 (long position)
BE&lBA 892,0008% (4 &)
262,021,585 (long position) 14.50%
262,021,5858 (4 8)
Rongton Investments Limited Beneficial owner 261,129,585 (long position) 14.45%
RERABRARA BExBEBA 261,129,5850% (47 &)
Equity Trustee Limited Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 476,861,461 (long position) 26.39%
EEINCEEEINCY 476,861 461X (3 8)
Rouser Investments Inc. Deemed interest, interest of 295,200,000 (long position) 16.34%
controlled company
BIFRA RS (152 FHEx) 295,200,0008% (4 2&)
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Deemed interest, interest of 127,809,022 (long position) 7.07%
controlled company
RIERA S (2 FlHES) 127,809,0228% (47 &)
2,212,698 (short position) 0.12%
22126980 (X&)
106,705,824 (lending pool) 591%

106,705,8248% (ATt fE H AR 17)

Note: There were 1,806,830,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 201 1. MisE - B Z2011412831H » ©%471,806,830,000
Bz D o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 201 |, our Company were not aware of BREXREEN  REEFRABEINSE

any person (other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) who had XVERE 336 ME T EM AR A B CMAR -

an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company R201MF12A318 - RARFMA - LEL

as recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company under Section 336 AL ARANEZSKRRITRARIRI)
of Part XV of the SFO. BERRARRNIBARNDOERIAR
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of our
Company and there is no restriction against such rights which would oblige our

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the directors of our Company have any ownership in other businesses
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

businesses of our Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of our Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Our Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive directors
and our Company considers that Mr. Xu Zhao, Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr.Wang Ching

to be independent.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2011, our Group had a total of 2,597 employees (2010: 1,442
employees). Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) incurred for the year
ended 3| December 2011 amounted to approximately RMBI76 million (2010:
RMB94 million). Remuneration packages of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board. Employee remuneration will
be determined by the management with reference to individual performance and

experience and industry practice.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 December

2011.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

As we obtain our major raw material, air, at no cost, electricity, which comprises over
80% of our total cost of sales, is therefore the largest item of our total purchases. As
we normally secure our electricity supply for our on-site gas operations through
contractual arrangements with our on-site customers, our current five largest
suppliers are all our on-site customers. We generally obtain electricity from our on-
site customers at the market rate set by state-owned electricity grid companies.
Electricity is usually supplied to our on-site customers by local electricity companies
which are state-owned enterprises. As we generally collect our receivables from our
on-site customers and make payment to on-site customers for our electricity usage
at or around the same time, their payments to us are generally netted off to take
into account our electricity expenses to our on-site customers. Our five largest
suppliers together accounted for approximately 62.6% (2010: 67.5%) of the total
purchases for the year ended 31 December 201 1. For the year ended 31 December
2011, our largest supplier accounted for approximately 19.7% (2010: 23.3%) of our

total purchases.

Our five largest customers together accounted for approximately 57.0% (2010:
56.7%) of our total revenues for the year ended 3| December 201 |. For the year
ended 31 December 2011, our largest customer accounted for approximately 18.0%

(2010: 17.7%) of our total turnover.

As far as our Company is aware, neither the directors, their associates, nor those
substantial shareholders who are interested in more than 5% of the Shares or
underlying Shares of our Company had any interest in the five largest customers and

suppliers of our Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The following continuing connected transactions of our Company are subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements

under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
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BACKGROUND

On 28 November 2008, our Group entered into a joint venture agreement with
Hengyang Valin to establish a joint venture with industrial gas supply company,
Hengyang Yingde, in Hengyang city, Hunan province in the PRC. As we own 70%
interest in Hengyang Yingde and have the right to appoint two out of three
members of its board of directors, we have control of Hengyang Yingde. Therefore,
our Company accounts for Hengyang Yingde as our subsidiary. Hengyang Valin owns

the remaining 30% interest in Hengyang Yingde.

As Hengyang Valin is a substantial shareholder of our Company's subsidiary,
Hengyang Valin is a connected person of our Company pursuant to Rule [4A.1'1(1)
of the Listing Rules. Therefore, any transaction between our Group and Hengyang
Valin (including its associates) are connected transactions of our Company pursuant
to Rule [4A.13(1)(a) of the Listing Rules which will be subject to the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSACTIONS

Hengyang Gas Supply Contract

On 28 November 2008, Yingde BVI (on behalf of Hengyang Yingde) entered into a
gas supply contract with Hengyang Valin, or the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract,
pursuant to which Yingde BVI agreed to transfer the benefits and obligations under
the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract to Hengyang Yingde upon its establishment, and
Hengyang Yingde would supply and Hengyang Valin would purchase a specified
minimum volume of industrial gases. The industrial gases supplied to Hengyang Valin
by Hengyang Yingde include oxygen, nitrogen and argon which are the major
industrial gas products offered by our Company. The duration of the Hengyang Gas
Supply Contract is 20 years. The end date of the gas supply contract is 30 October
2029. Under the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract, Hengyang Valin is required to
provide utilities (such as electricity) to Hengyang Yingde for its gas production
facilities located on the site of Hengyang Valin. Hengyang Yingde would in turn be
required to pay Hengyang Valin for those costs of gas production, such as the utility

costs and rents for occupation of the site.
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Gas Supply Transactions and Supply-related Transactions

The gas supply transactions from Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin are referred to
as the Gas Supply Transactions. The basis of pricing of the Gas Supply Transactions
was reached between our Group and Hengyang Valin through arm'’s length
negotiations taking into account factors including the price offered by competitors,
our Company’s investment in capital expenditure, the costs of gas production
(including the costs charged by Hengyang Valin for the Supply-related Transactions
described below), reputation and quality of Hengyang Valin, and the likely return to
the shareholders of our Company. In connection with the Gas Supply Transactions,
our Group will enter into certain related transactions with Hengyang Valin. These
transactions involve payment of expenses (including but not limited to electricity
expense, steam expense and rental expense) from Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang
Valin under the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract, or the Supply-related Transactions.
The basis of pricing of the Supply-related Transactions was reached between our
Company and Hengyang Valin through arm’s length negotiations taking into account
factors including the price charged by the local utility companies and the rentals

charged by landlords of adjacent properties.

Transaction Amounts for the Year Ended 3| December 201 |

Prior to the commencement of gas supplies by Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin
in April 2009, there were no transactions between our Group and Hengyang Valin.
The amount for the Gas Supply Transactions for the year ended 31 December 201 |
was approximately RMB87 million (2010: RMB85 million), which represented the on-
site sales revenue of Hengyang Yingde. The amount for the Supply-related
Transactions for the year ended 3| December 2011 of gas supply by Hengyang
Yingde to Hengyang Valin was approximately RMB51 million (2010: RMB61 million),

which represented the electricity and water expenses of Hengyang Yingde.

The annual cap set for the total Supply-related Transactions for the year ended 31
December 2011 was RMB65 million (2010: RMB65 million). The actual aggregate
amount Supply-related Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
RMB5 1 million (2010: RMB6 I million).

The annual cap set for the total Gas Supply Transactions for the year ended 3|
December 2011 was RMB1 10 million (2010: RMBI 10 million). The actual aggregate
amount Gas Supply Transactions for the year ended 3| December 2011 was RMB87
million (2010: RMB85 million).
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In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange has granted a waiver to our Company from strict compliance with the
disclosure or where appropriate, the shareholders' approval requirements stipulated

in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules subject to certain conditions.

Our independent non-executive directors have reviewed the above continuing

connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(1
)
©)

The Board has received a letter from the auditors of the Company stating that the

in the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group;

on normal commercial terms; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements entered into on terms which are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of our Company as

a whole.

continuing connected transactions:

have received the approval of the Board;

were in accordance with the pricing policy as stated on page 37 of this annual

report;

have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing

the continuing connected transactions; and

have not exceeded the annual cap amounts as set out above for the year

ended 31 December 201 1.
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is publicly
available to our Company and within the knowledge of the directors, our Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25 percent of our Company's

issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules during the year

OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 AND RULE
[3.2]1 OF THE LISTING RULES

Our Company entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks on 4
March 2011 (the “Facility Agreement”) for a 3-year term loan facility of up to
US$ 150 million (the “Facility”). Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it will be an event
triggering mandatory prepayment, inter alia, if: (a) any one or more of Peace &
Smooth (Hong Kong) Investments Ltd., Rongton Investments Limited, Baslow
Technology Limited and Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited solely (where there is only
one Controlling Shareholder) or jointly (where there is more than one Controlling
Shareholder) cease to control the Company or cease to own legally and beneficially
directly or indirectly through wholly owned subsidiaries 35 percent or more of the
issued share capital of the Company; or (b) either of Baslow Technology Limited and
Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited cease to own legally and beneficially directly or
indirectly through wholly owned subsidiaries any issued share capital of the

Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
Our Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as

the code of conduct regarding the securities transactions by the directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all directors, that all
directors have fully complied with standards required according to the Model Code

during the year ended 3| December 201 I.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Our Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance
practices. Corporate governance practices adopted by our Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report on pages 4| to 52.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Our Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
comprising all three existing independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Xu

Zhao (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 3| December 2011, and is of the view that our Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 3| December 2011 are prepared in
accordance with the applicable accounting standard, laws and regulations, and

appropriate disclosures have already been made.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
December 201 | have been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of our Company for the ensuring

year will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Zhongguo Sun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Directors” or the “Board”) is
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance to ensure effective
and responsible leadership for the Company and the protection of shareholders’

interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 201 |, our Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviation from the code
provision A.2.l of the Code which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be segregated. As at the date of this annual report, the
chairman and the chief executive officer of our Company is Mr. Zhongguo Sun.
However, the Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and the authority of the Board. The Board currently comprises of three
executive directors and three independent non-executive directors, with
independent non-executive directors representing 50% of the Board, which is higher
than the requirements under the Listing Rules. Such a high percentage of
independent non-executive directors on the Board can ensure that their views carry

significant weight and reflects the independence of the Board.

Mr. Sun was one of the main founders of our Group. He has been responsible for
operational management since the establishment of our Group. He has played an
important role during our expansion. Mr. Sun possesses rich working experience in
the industrial gas industry business and excellent operational management ability. At
present, the Board believes that it is beneficial to the management and development
of our Group’s businesses for Mr. Sun to be both the chairman and chief executive
officer as it helps to fasten the Board's decision-making. The Board would still
consider segregating the role of chairman and chief executive officer to comply with

the Code if appropriate.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Our Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding the

securities transactions by the directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all directors, that all
directors have fully complied with standards required according to the Model Code

during the year ended 31 December 201 1.

Independent Non-executive Director

For the year ended 3| December 2011, the Board at all times met Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional

qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Our Company has received annual confirmations from each of the three
independent non-executive directors in respect of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Our Company considers that all existing independent
non-executive directors are independent parties in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and are free of any relationship

that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgements.
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Corporate Governance Report «continued)

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for achieving the corporate goals, formulating the
development strategy, regularly reviewing the organizational structure, and
monitoring the business activities and the performance of management so as to
protect and maximize the interests of our Company and our shareholders. Matters
relating to the daily operations of our Group are delegated to the management.
During the year, the Board considered and approved the annual budget and its
performance under management supervision together with the business reports
from the management. The Board also reviewed and approved the final results for
the year ended 31 December 201 | and other critical business operations. The Board

also assessed the internal control and the financial matters of our Group.

Board Composition

The Board currently consists of six members, including:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti

Mr. ChenYan (resigned on 30 August 201 1)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Zhao

Mr. Zheng Fuya

Dr.Wang Ching

Mr. Zhao Xiangti and Dr:Wang Ching being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. On 30 August 2011, Mr. Chen
Yan resigned as an executive director of the Company. As at the date of this annual
report, the Board consists of six directors, including three executive directors and

three independent non-executive directors.
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The members of the Board represent a diverse and rich industry background with
appropriate professional qualifications. Please refer to the section headed

“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” for the profiles of our directors.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board. Board members are

free to exercise their independent judgment.

Under code provision A4.1 of the Code contained in Appendix 4 of the Listing
Rules, non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Our three independent non-executive directors are each appointed for a
term of three years, subject to re-election when appropriate by our Company in

general meeting.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, whenever it
is needed. Our Company will convene at least four regular meetings every year. In
2011, the company convened nine Board meetings. The attendance records of the

Board meetings held during the period are set out below:

EEENBARERNTRLERNZTILNE

5 HEBEENEXE T% ERRESNE
FENFLHIEERSREZEBRE] -5 -
PREFEMAM EXEXECABENE X
BRXEXEMEX EHREE - RETEH
fE B3 A BR

RETEALAGETIGRX  FRTEFA
BRETERRME  WAEE - ARR=EBY
FUTESTSAEHA=F  TRARARK
RAGEEET (WESR)

Exeed
EEeTHREEEEREREE - ARRE
BEEVARANATHE S - EFER2011E
BRBNLAEE - BRBTHNESESSEMNT
FREEFIMT

Meeting
attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)
Name of Directors SELE/ =E
Exps ERRY E 2 (%)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun 54 9179 100%
Mr. Zhao Xiangti WAL E 979 100%
Mr. Chen Yan (resigned on 30 August 201 1) BRESLAE (7201148 A 30 HEHT) 0/8 0%
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt 54 919 100%
Independent non-executive Director BYFHTES
Mr. Xu Zhao BrEtE 619 67%
Mr. Zheng Fuya BEDEE 6/9 67%
Dr.Wang Ching IriET 6/9 67%
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Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all directors at least 14 days before
the meetings. For other Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally

given.

The agendas and accompanying Board papers were given to all directors in a timely
manner. All directors are properly discussed on issues arising at Board meetings by

the chairman.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information with the advice of
the company secretary, to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Upon making request to the Board, all directors may obtain
independent professional advice at our Company’s expense for carrying out their

functions.

The company secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman
and the chief executive on governance matters; facilitating induction and professional
development of directors; and taking and keeping minutes of all Board committee
meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are normally circulated to the directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is

open for directors’ inspection.

Training for Directors

For each newly appointed director, he/she will be provided with an induction course
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of our Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities

and obligations under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to directors whenever necessary. To assist their
continuous professional development, the company secretary recommends directors

to attend relevant seminars and courses.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify our
directors and senior officers for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For
the year ended 3| December 2011, no claim has been made against our directors

and senior officers.
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Board Committees

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the compliance committee
(collectively the “Board Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of our

Company's affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at our Company's expense.

Audit Committee

The Board established the audit committee on 12 September 2009, with the written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mr. Xu Zhao
and comprises two other members, namely Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching, all

of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and removal of the external auditors, review the financial
statements, oversee and provide material advice in respect our financial reporting

system and oversee the internal control procedures of our Company.

For the year ended 3| December 2011, the audit committee convened three
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meetings: RBZXEH

Meeting

attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)
Name of Directors = -4 2%
EEpE SERY % 2 (%)
Mr. Xu Zhao (Chairman) RBEE (£F) 3/3 100%
Mr. Zheng Fuya BEDEE 3/3 100%
Dr.Wang Ching IriE+ 3/3 100%
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During the year under review, the audit committee together with the management
has reviewed, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the Group's internal control and financial reporting matters, including
review of the annual results for the year ended 3| December 2010 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 201 I, with recommendation to the Board
for approval. The audit committee has also recommended to the Board that, subject
to our shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, KPMG, be

re-appointed as the external auditors of our Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the remuneration committee on 12 September 2009, with
the written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, Mr. Zhao Xiangti was the chairman of the remuneration committee
and Mr. Xu Zhao and Mr. Zheng Fuya were the other two members of the

remuneration committee.

The primary functions of the remuneration committee are to evaluate the
performance and make recommendations on the remuneration package of our
directors and senior management, our retirement scheme and our performance

assessment system and bonus and commission policies.

The remuneration of directors are based on their skills, knowledge, involvement in
our Company's affairs and the performance, together with reference to the
profitability of our Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and

prevailing market conditions.

No director or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection with
his or her own remuneration. The remuneration committee may also consult the
chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
directors and has access to professional advice if necessary. The major objective of
the remuneration policy is to ensure that our Company is able to attract, retain, and

motivate a high caliber team which is essential to the success of our Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 201, the remuneration committee convened one

BE20MF12AMBLFE FHEEEA

meeting: HB-—Rg#:

Meeting

attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)
Name of Directors BRHE/ =k
EEnE ERRY % 2 (%)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti (Chairman) HEELE (£F) /1 100%
Mr. Xu Zhao rEALE 11 100%
Mr. Zheng Fuya BEDEE /1 100%

During the year under review, the remuneration committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive directors and senior

management of our Company, and offered advice on the same to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the nomination committee on 12 September 2009, with the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mn
Zheng Fuya and comprises two other members, namely Mr. Xu Zhao and Mr. Zhao

Xiangti.

The primary functions of the nomination committee are to make recommendations

to our Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on our Board.

The duties of the nomination committee also includes reviewing the structure,
number and composition of the Board; submitting proposals to the Board on the
appointment of chief executive officer; reviewing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors and submitting proposals to the Board. The
authority and duties of the nomination committee are clearly sets out in its terms of

reference.
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Corporate Governance Report «continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the nomination committee convened one

-IJ'_% ERBE @)

HZE2011F12A31BILEE RELEE

meeting: HB-—Rg#%:

Meeting

attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)
Name of Directors eELE/ =
EEps = V8 i 2 (%)
Mr. Zheng Fuya (Chairman) BERLE (FF) /1 100%
Mr. Xu Zhao wEEE /1 100%
Mr. Zhao Xiangti HIRE L. /1 100%

During the year under review, the nomination committee recommended to the
Board the matters concerning the re-election of directors by shareholders pursuant
to the Articles of Association having due regard to their performance and ability to
continue to contribute to the Board and assessed the independence of all

independent non-executive directors.

Compliance Committee

The Board established the Compliance Committee on 12 September 2009 with the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mr.
Zhongguo Sun and comprises two other members, namely Mr. Zhao Xiangti and Mr.
Zheng Fuya. The primary functions of the compliance committee are to ensure

compliance on regulatory matters and corporate governance.

The work performed by the compliance committee during the year under review
included review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and
making recommendation to the Board for improvement of internal control, credit

control and risk management.
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For the year ended 31 December 201 |, the compliance committee convened one

HE20ME12A3BILEE AREEER

meeting: RB-—Rg#%:

Meeting

attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)
Name of Directors = 1 =
EENAR EVS 1 & (%)
Mr. Zhongguo Sun (Chairman) Zhongguo Sun %t 4 () 1/ 100%
Mr. Zhao Xiangti HIRELE 1/ 100%
Mr. Zheng Fuya BELLE /1 100%

ACCOUNTABILITY

The directors of our Company acknowledged their responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the consolidated financial
statements of the annual and interim reports. When the directors were aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast significant
doubt upon our Company's ability to continue as a going concern, such uncertainties
would be clearly and prominently set out and discussed in detail in this Corporate

Governance Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal controls of our Group are designed to help our Group protect its
assets and information. The presence of internal controls empowers our Group to
implement best business practices in challenging business environments. Our
Group's internal controls cover a number of in-house procedures and policies. The
system comprises, among others, the relevant financial, operational and compliance

controls and risk management procedures.

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal control and its
effectiveness. It has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group, including strategic planning,
corporate governance, financial reporting, core business processes, and compliance
and risk management. The Group has conducted a high level review on the
significant risks faced by the Group and the effectiveness of the internal control

system for the year ended 31 December 201 I.

The Board is not aware of any significant internal control weaknesses nor significant

breach of limits or risk management policies.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Report «continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Our Group's independent auditors is KPMG. KPMG is responsible for auditing and
forming an independent opinion on our Group's annual consolidated financial

statements.

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to our Company's

auditors, KPMG, are as follows:

TEERRE @)

BUGHMMNE
ARENBLZEMARERETMEBA
EERSHAEHMARERARBFEAH
MBmRRRERBIER -

EOEFR  BNRENEALAZEESH
SRR EBAOMESMT

Year ended 3| December

BZNA3IBLEE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBFT

Audit service (including annual BB (BEFEEZM
audit and interim review) HHIE R BRTS) 4,298 3,350
Non-audit services FEEZR 71 662
4,369 4,012

Non-audit services include tax and internal control review services.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules with effect from |
January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general meetings will be voted by poll. The
poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and our Company (www.yingdegases.com) on the same day of

the relevant general meetings.

Further information about investor relations are set out on page 9.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of our Group and ensure that financial statements are in accordance

with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon

our Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yingde Gases Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 55 to 46, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 3|1 December 201 |, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued
B A RS @

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 3| December 201 | and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

|6 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

R E IR R

for the year ended 31 December 20

BEIF 1283 BEFE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Turnover A 4,240,275 3,004,933
Cost of sales EERA (2,789,384) (1,840,790)
Gross profit E7 1,450,891 164,143
Other revenue ﬁﬁﬂqﬁl* 10,835 2,223
Selling expenses HEE (131,844) (57,668)
Administrative expenses EIE % A (238,562) (322,454)
Profit from operations R W& 1,091,320 786,244
Finance income FIA 17,055 10,372
Finance costs BT TSR (126,684) (128,237)
Share of results of associates iy AN E (244) =
Profit before taxation B B4 A1 A 981,447 668,379
Income tax P (145,800) (135,163)
Profit and total comprehensive TEFBER

income for the year mEWREE 835,647 533216
Attributable to: U & 75 B4
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFEA 830,819 577,281
Non-controlling interests FEEBRB R E R 4,828 (44,065)
Profit and total comprehensive FERNBR

income for the year meREAE 835,647 533216
Earnings per share (RMB) BREFN (AR¥ )

Basic YN 0.460 0319

Diluted 23 0.460 0319

The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements. Details of

dividends are set out in Note 26(b).

EF 146 B MM AARE 15 RR AKX
fe B FEHRNME26(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& O B AROR &
at 31 December 201 |
R20I1F 128318

2011 2010

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Pt aE ARET ARBETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net ME - BERRE FE I 5,076,177 3,822,697
Construction in progress ERTR 12 992,681 1,024,363
Lease prepayments MEBNKIE 13 126,243 65,043
Intangible assets BVEE 14 61,563 12,939
Receivables under finance lease el R EHER 15 13,683 14,248
Interest in associates i NI 17 399,756 100,000
Other non-current assets Hin3Eme & E 18 939,738 368,219
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 6(d) 27,574 7,589
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 7,637,415 5415,098
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 32,323 30,075
Trade and other receivables I B K e A B KR 19 1,029,231 748,924
Receivables under finance lease FEl R EHE R 15 2,117 2,117
Income tax recoverable Ak EIFTE 6(c) 6,463 433
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITER 20 158,951 467,568
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 2 958,280 970,458
Total current assets RBEERTE 2,187,365 2,219,575
Current liabilities ok R=Ri
Bank and other loans RITREMER 22 1,115,520 783,963
Trade and other payables JRE {1 AR X K% L At 5 SR IE 23 1,363,016 1,244,295
Obligations under finance lease MEMERE 24 10,525 2,963
Income tax payable FE PRS0 6(c) 73,913 55,673
Total current liabilities RBRELAR 2,562,974 2,086,894
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (BfE) EEZE (375,609) 132,681
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREBEE 7,261,806 5,547,779
The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements. F63EE R 146E MM T BRI IR AKX

85 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

S BEEF TS AR 3R ()

at 31 December 201 |
R2011412 831 B
2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P &E ARBTR ARET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 22 2,084,823 1,132,137
Obligations under finance lease MEHEREE 24 119,836 28,112
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEER 6(d) 53,796 20,979
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAE 2,258,455 1,181,228
Net assets EEFRE 5,003,351 4,366,551
Equity i
Share capital L& 25 12 12
Reserves e 4,991,271 4352819
Total equity attributable to equity FAREEREA
shareholders of the Company R AHE 4,991,283 4,352,831
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 12,068 13,720
Total equity R 5,003,351 4,366,551

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on |6 March 2012.

Zhongguo Sun
Zhongguo Sun

Director

EF

The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements.

EEZeMN2012E3 816 B #LfE RIFRETE o

Zhao Xiangti
HER
Director

EF

FO3REF146ROME AR BHRER VA

&
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Statement of Financial Position
B #E AR R 3R

at 31 December 201 |
R2011E 128318
2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B E AR¥ET R ARBTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net ME - BB R®RE - B 340 553
Interests in subsidiaries HIB A RI MR 16 3,616,354 2,718,344
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 3,616,694 2,718,897
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b U SR IE 19 1,204 900
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEED 21 51,860 219,125
Total current assets REEEAE 53,064 220,025
Current liabilities REEE
Bank and other loans RIT R EMER 22 231,917 -
Accrued expenses and other payables FERER K H A TRIE 23 32,852 23,829
Total current liabilities REEEAHE 264,769 23,829
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE (AfE) EEZRHE (211,705) 196,196
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 3,404,989 2,915,093
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other loans RIT R EMER 22 695,751 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELERE 695,751 =
Net assets BEFE 2,709,238 2915,093

146 B KM 3T AR B 15 SR MO A2 A

"
3
'
I
5

The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position (continued)

B AR 2R ()
at 31 December 201 |
R0 12831 A
2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt ARET ARETT
Equity i
Share capital LN 25 12 12
Reserves i 26(a) 2,709,226 2915,081
Total equity EHEH 2,709,238 2,915,093
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2012. EZ 2201263168 #1f R TI%
Zhongguo Sun Zhao Xiangti
Zhongguo Sun 18 B
Director Director
EE BEF
The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements. F63EEF 1468 MM T RN B MK H9 4K
7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOtEREE R

Fo

e year ended 3| December 201 |

Ol 12 A3I BIEFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARBRAAES
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve Reserve earnings Total interests equity
2R

RE  ROEE AERE Et4EE REEN @  REEZ EREE
Note RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
i AR®TR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note 25) (Note 26(c)) (Note 26(d)) (Note 26(e))
(Frsx2s) (Rrzko6(c) (RosEoe(d)) (Ff&E26(e))

At | January 2010 R210F1 818 12 2995502 39532 (31369%) 1054200 3775550 49285 382483
Total comprehensive AEGalREE

income for the year - - - - 577,281 577,281 (44065) 533216
Appropriations 3 = = 268,706 - (268706) - - -
Capital contribution froma ~ JFERBRF T E

non-controlling shareholder = = = = = = 8,500 8,500
At 31 December 2010 R2010F 128318 12 2995502 308238 (31369%) 1362775 435283 13720 4366551
At I January 2011 R201ME1A1E 12 2,995,502 308238 (313696) 1,362,775 4352831 13720 4,366,551
Total comprehensive REGANGEE

income for the year - - - - 830819 830,819 4828 835,647
Appropriations B8R = = 93,624 - (93,624) - - -
Dividends approved in EBLEEN

respect of the previous year  EE RIS 26(b) - - - - (180683)  (180,683) - (180,683)
Purchase of own shares R e 25 - (11,684) = - - (I1,684) - (I1,684)
Distributions to a AREFERRE

non-controling shareholder = = = = = = (6,480) (6,480)
At 31 December 201 | R201ME12A318 12 2983818 401,802 (313696) 1919287 4991283 12,068 5,003,351
The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements. F63EEF146EHIMT AR BRER AN

7o o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHRERER
For the year ended 31 December 201 |

BE2011F12A31 BILEFE

2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P &E ARBTR ARET T
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation BB AT F 981,447 668,379
Adjustments for: HEIER ¢
Depreciation e 275,728 157,687
Amortisation 3] 3,652 1,331
Finance income BRI A (17,055) (10,372)
Finance costs LRI 126,684 128,237
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERRER
plant and equipment (W) /EiRFE (114) 292
Provision for impairment loss on property, ERN N E
plant and equipment, construction in progress, ERIRE BFEE -
intangible assets and trade receivables YRR ER X - 192,088
Share of results of associates iR E 244 =
Increase in inventories FELM (2,248) (17,348)
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE W B R I Lt KU IR A AN (197,715) (232.331)
Increase in trade and other payables R A<F B 30 B Lt JRE <SSR IR 3 A 79,710 30,158
1,250,333 918,121
Interest received BEIFE 12,819 8,631
Interest paid BERFE (167,748) (96,584)
Income tax paid ERAEH (161,999) (108,344)
Income tax refund PSR M 41,241 10,602
Net cash generated from operating activities  KEZEFBSHNE & FHE 974,646 732,426
The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements. FO3EZE146E MM T RAT BIMERNAEK
7 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continuea)

EfRERER @
For the year ended 3| December 201 |

HZ2011F12 831 ALLFE

2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B E AR¥TR ARBFTT
Investing activities REES
Capital expenditure BEARRX (2,178,115) (1929,593)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BERRTERRD(150) 308,617 (352,708)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERERBERERE
plant and equipment 667 25
Collection of receivables under finance lease Y B el R & T E N 2,245 2,245
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary, Yo B8 Y /B8 2 Rl 2 P RO SRR
net of cash acquired HRmER: - (47,012)
Payment for other investment in equity securities H b AR BE SR E L R0E - (12,727)
Payment for investment in an associate REBE NI NHIA (300,000) (100,000)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFANRSEE (2,166,586) (2,439,770)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMERAERIE 2,112,776 1,957,400
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITREMER (828,533) (1,356,700)
Proceeds from finance lease transaction MEMERHAEHIA 100,000 =
Payment of obligations under finance lease EEMEHEARINHRIE (3,200) (3,200)
Payment of issuing expenses TRETER - (13,151)
Payment for repurchase of shares AR 7 [B] B FE (11,684) =
Capital injection from a R B FR1GKIE
non-controlling shareholder - 8,500
Dividend paid to equity shareholders XRGEARRRRENRE
of the Company (180,683) -
Net cash generated from financing activities METBDRENRSFRE 1,188,676 592,849
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BERBAEEENMALDFE (3,264) (1,114,495)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January MA1TERERESESEY 970,458 2,102,462
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEXSBHHNTE (8,914) (17,509)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12BNBRERAREEEY 2l 958,280 970,458
The notes on pages 63 to 146 form part of these financial statements. F63EZER 46BN T ARABREMOEN
2o e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Group is principally

engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in the People’s Republic

of China (the “PRC").

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on [0 July 2009 (the
“Reorganisation”) to rationalise the group structure for the public listing of the
Company's shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange"), the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 September 2009. The
Company issued 339,232,500 ordinary shares with par value of USD0.00000
each at a price of HKD7.00 per share by way of public offering of the
Company’s ordinary shares to Hong Kong and overseas investors. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 8 October

2009.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations promulgated by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”). These financial statements also comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of

the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

At 31 December 2011, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by RMB375,609,000, which includes bank and other loans
repayable within one year of RMBI,115,520,000. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors have considered the Group's sources of liquidity
and believe that adequate funding is available to fulfill the Group's short-
term obligations and capital expenditure requirements. Accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared on a basis that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern. Further details are set out in
Note 29(c).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
201 | comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the Group's interest

in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs and one new
interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments are

relevant to the Group's financial statements:

. IAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

*  Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
The above developments resulted in changes in accounting policy but
none of these changes in policy have a material impact on the current or
comparative periods. The details of these changes in accounting policy

are as follows:

o IAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party. As a
result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of related
parties and concluded that the revised definition does not have any
material impact on the Group’s related party disclosures in the
current and previous period. IAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces
modified disclosure requirements for government-related entities.
This does not impact the Group because the Group is not a

government-related entity.

*  Improvements to IFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces a
number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in IFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosures. These amendments do not have
any material impact on the disclosure of the Group's financial
instruments, and the classification, recognition and measurements of
the amounts recognised in the financial statements in the current

and previous periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into

account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with Notes

2(m) or (n) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate (see Note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(j)), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(¢)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held
for sale or (included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the associate’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group's share of the associate's net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see Note 2(j)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associates and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the associates’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investment

in the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(¢)

()

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that associate, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former associate at the date when significant influence is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate.

Other investments in equity securities
The Group’s and the Company's policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and associates, are as

follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are subsequently

accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these investments as these are

recognised in accordance with the policies set out in Notes 2(s)(ii) and

(ii).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment

losses (see Note 2())).

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale equity securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. Dividend
income from these investments is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(s)(ii). When these
investments are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(j)), the cumulative

gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group

commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(2)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(j)).

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction and equipment pending installation, and is initially
recognised at cost. Cost comprises cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see Note 2(u)). The construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for its intended
use, notwithstanding any delays in the issue of the relevant

commissioning certificates by the relevant PRC authorities.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings I5 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 20 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5- 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the

useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)). Amortisation of intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the assets’ estimated useful life of 5 to 10 years.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, except for land held for
own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or

taken over from the previous lessee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leased assets (continued)

(i

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance lease,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments of such
assets are included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in Note 2(g). Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 2(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
S B B 7 3R 3R 5 @)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

(iv)

Receivables under finance lease

Where the Group leased out assets under finance lease, the initial
direct costs incurred on such assets are recorded as receivables
under finance lease. Finance income implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the receivables for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the purchase costs of land use rights.
Land use rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(j)). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the land use

rights.

Impairment of assets

U]

Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

Investments in equity securities and current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of

the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHEE @
() EERE @
(i) BRABHRERERRENR
B 5 (E)
B - M5 BESOX
BRENEANEZARE

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables
(continued)
—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or

legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and BAGKINEE R

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an - BREZBFRENAAE

investment in an equity instrument below its cost. BELERERIFETRE
ZEERBAR o

MEFNZERRFE « EHR
)TEEU/U@@EJ—;LE ?ﬁﬁﬁmﬁDT

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

—  For investments in subsidiaries and associates (including those - RIBAAREE AR
recognised using the equity method (see Note 2(e))), the HIR B (B ARE 0K E

76

impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with Note 2(j)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to

determine the recoverable amount in accordance with Note

2(j) ).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost

are not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
S B B 7 3R 3R 5 @)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

(continued)

For trade and other current receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit

risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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78

profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss

on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such

assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit

or loss.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHEE @
(j) Impairment of assets (continued) () BERE®E
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables (i) BREABFREREWRENH
(continued) B 5 (E)
—  For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss that - EBERERIREEHEE
has been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to BRI B B IR A 5

MEFERERENRE
B REERPER
MERBERNEBRNR
BRANGREANALE
TREH) MRTRAE
ENER - LMEREM
I DA BT F R B P R
MERZEENRERS

B

B R R 2R T HERR A A 4
HEBRAESZNRES
B TeRBEEEM -
% B ERHREMEM
MAREBEEERNE
iR W o

REBE-REZNEHREE
REWE - RARRR R
EERBESRENRYE
REERRBRORESE - &
EERT - RIRHBEBREE
EHEEE - EARERRBR
B SRIAR A BE 1SR AE - AR
[ & #8 > Al & B B R B MR R
FREBREEEE - WBERK
IREMR B P EAHEN B A%
BRARA R - HRKEBHED
AARBRNEE SR ER
FRAPEDE - RERPOEME
PMERKEBECER P H
MEBENBRTHER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the

end of each reporting period to identify indications that the

following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
construction in progress;

lease prepayments;

intangible assets; and

other non-current assets (excluding receivables).

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not get available

for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a

cash-generating unit).
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use,

if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare

an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim

financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial

year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same

impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at

the end of the financial year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (continued)
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair
value of an available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive

income and not profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which

the reversal occurs.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(j)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together

with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for
financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with Note 2(r)(i),
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the vear in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect

would be material, these amounts are stated at their present value.

Obligations for contributions to PRC local government defined
contribution retirement plans pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordiance, which is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees, are recognised as an expense in

profit or loss when incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

S BT S R M @

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2
(q9) Income tax (continued)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

FEEHHE (@
(q) FEH (&)

PRETHEEEMREMS
BLEEMBES RE—BE
MR A TR — B A0 RT
= -

- A-RHER:

pE

|
mup

- TANRHER - B
LERAERREHE
BAAAREELEHER
EFREEIANEEL
BIRE B A bA e @ &9 2
AR RERELEER
FIER A A EMEEED
HRAEE  AFREE
RRZEEMEEZA

&

]

() FrEHBMBRER EERRERE

(i)

Pt R I AR

PHEEREEBLREETA
(BMERA) RIFEL TAN K
R EESR - AR EER
RaAFEADEX—KE
EBATRENIREBME
ENERNAH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

V)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit

or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with Note 2(r)(ii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the

present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when gas products are delivered at the
customers' premises or collected by the customer which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has accepted the gas
products and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax and other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

2
(r)

(s)

EEBE @

FIEHMBBER - ERRABER

(%)

(i) HtREERIAEBEE (B
0 SRS B 5 7 1 A A B R
& SREEZHEBRMED
SN BERAEER
ERSARE  BEBEMNER
B 7] g 15 1R (K B 15 OR A1l BR
o MRAEENETART
RRAGRAREMREHE
THEETREHFE  NERE
AIERE  BEENZRL
# 7] ge MR A B RIBR 5D o

W EmER
hEREMHERREN AR EE
RETEH - MREENGAIEEGR
AREE - Mk REA (IER)
Xeen et 6 WEFESR
BTIIEERER

(i) #HEER
WaEERBERKERETPRE
AEPRER  BEPEEK
FZREBERNREMEEAEN
B A B0 By T OABERR, o WS
TERERIEMERE - ¥
EMBREFBERSN -

(i) BB
FEMREMBRBBRARBER

W 5K TR B R RSB RE R
(iii) MEBA

A BB R SHER R E IR %
TR -



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into RMB at
the applicable rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
("PBOC") prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at
the applicable PBOC rates ruling at the end of reporting period.

Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using applicable PBOC
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the applicable PBOC rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was determined.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the year in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for

its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group'’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of

which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(W)

Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies (continued):

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in
the PRC. Although the industrial gases are sold to on-site and merchant
customers, the Group’s most senior executive management regularly
review their consolidated financial statements to assess the performance
and make resource allocation decisions. Accordingly, no segment

information is presented.

Substantially all of the Group's external customers and non-current

assets are located in the PRC,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group's financial position and results of operations are sensitive to
accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of these financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions and estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that the Group
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements
about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. On an on-
going basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may differ from

those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of
reported results to changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be
considered when reviewing these financial statements. The principal accounting
policies are set forth in Note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates used

in the preparation of these financial statements.

(a) Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous

estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, this asset may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of assets
are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating to the level of
sales revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sales revenue

and amount of operating costs.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Group has entered into long-term gas supply contracts with on-site
customers for periods up to 30 years.The production facilities are built
on or in close proximity to the on-site customers for the supply of
industrial gases to such customers (“on-site facilities”). The Group
receives fixed annual amounts over the terms of the long-term gas supply
contracts plus variable charges based on the quantity of industrial gases
supplied. The Group also sells gas products produced from the on-site

facilities to merchant customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(c) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease (continued)
In determining whether the arrangement contains a lease, the Group has
considered the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts. Pursuant to
the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts, the on-site customers
do not have the right to operate or control physical access to the on-site
facilities. In addition, gas products produced from the on-site facilities are
also sold to merchant customers. The amounts sold to the merchant
customers are more than an insignificant amount of the total gas
products produced from the on-site facilities. Accordingly, the Group
concluded that the arrangement of long-term gas supply contracts does

not contain any lease.

TURNOVER
The Group is principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases
in the PRC. Turnover represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods

sold, net of value added tax.

During the year ended 3| December 2011, the Group had three customers
that individually exceeded
RMB761,669,000, RMB558,470,000 and RMB532,863,000 respectively.

10% of the Group's turnover, being

During the year ended 3| December 2010, the Group had three customers
that individually exceeded
RMB531,743,000, RMB373,778,000 and RMB358,971,000 respectively.

0% of the Group's turnover, being

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from the customers are set out in
Note 29(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR B A0 A8
BHAFEE MR/ GEA) -

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBETT
(a) Finance income/(costs): (a) HBUWA/ (BA) :
Interest income MEMA 12,819 8,631
Finance income on receivables FEW R BT E
under finance lease HELE WA 1,680 1,741
Total interest income S AL 14,499 10,372
Foreign currency exchange gain BEE 5z 2,556 =
Finance income FIBA 17,055 10,372
Interest on bank and other loans RITREMERD
wholly repayable 2HREMFR (177,352) (95,470)
Finance charges on obligations BEMERE
under finance lease B E & (2,486) (2,539)
Total interest expenses F B3 85 (179,838) (98,009)
Less: borrowing costs capitalised o BB AR 53,154 I'1,696
(126,684) (86,313)
Foreign currency exchange loss b &5 1R - (41,924)
Finance costs LI I (126,684) (128,237)
(109,629) (117,865)
Borrowing costs have been capitalised B A
at the following rates: WA THEERL -

Capitalisation rate (per annum)

BARE® (B8%F)

5.4% -7.8% 5.4% -6.1%
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5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued):

5

BR B0 A0 A8 (80
BB AFEE Mk GtA) (8)

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFTT
(b)  Staff costs: (b) BIMAE:
Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits e IE  EARETR 164,393 88,402
Contributions to defined TE R K
contribution retirement schemes RIRET B E 3R 11,960 5416
176,353 93,818

Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (see Note 7).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group's PRC subsidiaries participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the respective local
government authorities whereby the Group is required to make
contributions to the Schemes at rates in the range of 10% to 22% of the

eligible employees'’ salaries during the year.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of

HKD?20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension

benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRHARE@
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued): BT RTFIEE Bk GTA) (8) -
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F R ARETR
(c) Other items: (c) HiEA :
Utilities NEEES
— Electricity 8% 1,872,088 1,559,790
— Steam — & 451,592 55995
Depreciation e 275,728 157,687
Amortisation B
— Land lease premium —MEBEMNKIE 1,777 651
— Intangible assets BV EE 1,875 680
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AT &
— Audit service —BRR% 4,298 3,350
— Non-audit service —EBERRG 71 662
Consulting fees BAE 7,647 3,696
Operating lease charges: minimum lease REMEERA
payment (land and buildings) REHREFE (THEEE) 10,399 5,592
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment HEH (W) /BERFE (114) 292
Impairment losses REEE
— Non-current assets (Note) —FRBEE (M)
Property, plant and equipment E R L - 78,085
Construction in progress ERTRE - 92,170
Intangible assets BEE - 8,751
—Trade and other receivables — PR BR R e E A JE W kIR 71 13,082
Note: During the year ended 3| December 2010, the Group assessed the recoverable fisE : BZE2010F12A31BLEE - A5E

amounts of Zhangjiagang Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. (“Zhangjiagang Yingde"), the
Group's 75% owned subsidiary, and recognised impairment losses of
RMB179,006,000 against the non-current assets of Zhangjiagang Yingde.
Zhangjiagang Yingde was engaged in the business of producing fluorine related
gas products in which the technical know-how of production of fluorine related
gas products was contributed by Zhangjiagang Yingde's non-controlling
shareholder. In 2010, production plant of Zhangjiagang Yingde was temporarily
closed down because Zhangjiagang Yingde's non-controlling shareholder did not
provide continued support on the required technical know-how for commercial
production of fluorine related gas products. Without the required technical
know-how, Zhangjiagang Yingde would not be cost-effective to produce quality
fluorine related gas products for commercial sales. To date, the Group has no

plan to reactivate Zhangjiagang Yingde's production in the foreseeable future.
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DEEERRNEBRBIXARE
179,006,0007C ° KR & B EH IR
HERRMEBARG  HEERRIEHR
HLREITERRERENIFEERR
RIEH 20105 - AR RRAREL
EERR R A EERMTE AR
BRELBEARMIHIGETEEE
ERRBRENEERTRRA o
REMBENEERN  RRAREE
FEENRAERANZNARABEL
MNETHECEE -HZEBA - &
SEEAERNRILE T EMRER
RERENEE -
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2011 FF#

97



98

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
& Ot Bt 7 3R 3R B 5 @)

6  INCOME TAX 6 FiEH
(a) Taxation in profit or loss (a) FFABZNBIE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Provision of PRC income tax for the year 4 [€ F BIFT{S 51 132,968 146,359
Deferred tax ERERIE 12,832 (11,196)
145,800 135,163
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable (b) FIBBXHBEREABEAENE
tax rates T A E A B R
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Profit before taxation B %57 1] ) 981,447 668,379

Expected PRC income tax expense at the 1% 25% JATEH Xt B H)

statutory tax rate of 25% EHHEMRERER 245,362 167,095
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TRAIENERNB BT E 6,435 15,033
Effect of tax losses MIEEENTE 3,219 58,629
Differential tax rate on subsidiaries’ results Fff /& 722 7142 A #% & = 7 (84,390) (91,942)
Tax credit of domestic equipment BEBEREN

purchases (Note (ii)) IR (BT G) (57,875) (7.477)
Tax on distributable profits of st BB B A Rl Al 2 Uk

subsidiaries in the PRC (Note (iii)) FERRIE (PR i) 32,988 (6,175)
Tax effect in respect of share of BIEBMERRZENNBTE

results of associates 6l -
Actual income tax expense EREHAX 145,800 135,163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable

tax rates (continued)

Notes:

()

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the

Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the Group does
not earn any income subject to Hong Kong profits tax during the current

and prior years.

The provision for current PRC income tax is based on a statutory rate of
25% (2010: 25%) of the assessable profit as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which are entitled to preferential tax rate of 15%
or 50% exemption of the income tax pursuant to the grandfathering

arrangement under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC.

Before 31 December 2007, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC
obtained the approval of income tax credit for purchasing qualified
domestic equipment from the local tax authorities in accordance with the
relevant tax regulations issued by the State Administration of Taxation.
Pursuant to Guoshuifa [2008] No.52 issued by the State Administration of
Taxation in May 2008, such tax credit policy ceased to be effective since |
January 2008. During the year ended 3| December 2011, certain
subsidiaries utilised the unused tax credit of RMB57,875,000 granted by the
relevant local tax authorities prior to 3| December 2007 (2010:
RMB7,477,000).

Withholding tax at 0%, unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, is
imposed when dividends are distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to its
immediate holding company outside mainland China for earnings generated
beginning on | January 2008. Undistributed earnings generated prior to |

January 2008 are exempted from such withholding tax.

6

Fri&8 (8

(b) FIERXHERBEAHEFENS
HRBOED & (80
B3 -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

REREHERABRLASH
RARKE  FAREEFINE
ARSHEERABE BN
&/H -

A& ERF R RIAR FE I HER
ERAELRRBBENERTM
A UBBRBBEFEH

BRASEE T @A BIRE (R &
CEMEIR NBE GREES
HE15%K50%HETH - RIE
FRFEHEERAIRATE &
HA B AT 15 7 R 1R B AR B A 9
25% (20106 : 25%) JATE B K&t

s
B o
FT

200751231878 KEEE
FTHEMBARRERRFHB R
B BERBOERN Z B
BRESTHRERARBERE
FrEREeniE - REERH
B4 BR2008F 58 B % K B KL
(20081525 X * B200841 A 1
BiE - FIE R MECE - B
B0NMENANALEE EF
KB LR HEEEE K RHIE
T R FHERRN 2007512 A31 B Al
BEMHAFERAORBEENIAR
#57,875,0007T (20104 : AR
#7 477,0007T) °

FEIERMEHIRR2008F 181
A& VS B B 7 46 B A B A RE DA
SN EBERABIEBI0%MH
KYWENH - BRIFEBEKL
FHEEEETETIURE - B
20081 A1 B ZAIBVBENRS
RO RBFIEBZEENG -
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6

(©

INCOME TAX (continued) % (@)
Income tax (recoverable)/payable in the consolidated statement of (c) ABtHBRRRA (FMKE) R
financial position PS8
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBETT
At | January m1A18 55,240 6,623
Provision for PRC income tax for the year & & BIFT5H 132,968 146,359
PRC income tax paid BB EH (161,999) (108,344)
PRC income tax refund TS HR B 41,241 10,602
At 31 December R12A31H 67,450 55,240
Representing: & -
Income tax recoverable A] Y Bl T A5 3 (6,463) (433)
Income tax payable JE 5 P AF 3% 73913 55,673
67,450 55,240
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FMEH@
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (d) BREEZHESEREE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the () AHIBRARAEROET
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements are HIE(BE) /ABENER DS
as follows: WREEHMT :
Property, Allowance Profits
plant and for doubtful Tax loss expected to
equipment debts  carry forwards distribute Total
The Group (Note)
nE BB
BERRE REERE FREEE ROVRAE @t
A& (FHiE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AR%Txn
Deferred tax arising from: ~ ELHBEHH FRBES :
At | January 2010 R2010E 1418 - (2,680) - 24621 21,941
Acquisition of a subsidiary KNI B A7) 2,645 - - - 2,645
Charged/(credited) to RE&HNR/
profit or loss (5t A) (112) 43 (5341) (6175) (11,196)
At 31 December 2010 ®2010%512 A 318 2533 (2248) (5341) 18446 13390
At | January 201 | R201151 818 2,533 (2,48) (5,341 18,446 13,390
Charged/(credited) to RERME,/
profit or loss (5t A) (171) (841) (19,144) 32,988 12,832
At 3! December 2011 R2011E12A 31 H 2,362 (3,089) (24,485) 51,434 2622
Note: Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits represent temporary izt . RAOMEFBOELHIES

differences relating to the distributable profits accumulated since |

January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC that are

expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

BEREASESHENE
ARIFER] T R )R TR
%k & 8 2008F 18 18
R 5t #9 A 2k A A
MEREER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

S BT S R M @

6 INCOME TAX (continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position:

6

Fr&Es (80

(d)

BRELEHREAEER 8E (H)
i) AHMBRRRNAHE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBETT
Net deferred tax asset recognised in 7 B Ak L & #EZR &Y
the statement of financial position ~ IEIEFHIBE EF 5 27,574 7,589
Net deferred tax liability recognised in 7 BF AR 3R H FERR A
the statement of financial position ELERIBEEFE (53,796) (20979)
(26,222) (13,390)
(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (e) RERELHERE

At 31 December 2011, temporary differences relating to the
distributable profits accumulated since | January 2008 of the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC, that are not expected to be distributed in the
foreseeable future, amounted to approximately RMBI,774,284,000 (2010:
RMB,403,102,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on distribution of these
retained earnings as the Group controls the dividend policy of these

subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that profits will

not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

R2011F12A318 » AEEE+HH
MBARENBRARRBHRAT
AIEKIE2008F 1 A1 B RHHA
ARFBEENEREZENRA
R¥1,774,284,0007C (20104 = A
R ¥1,403,102,00070) ° B9k %
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EEHH
REEERAGRIF161ERENESH
MEE25mT

7  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance are as follows:

2011
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
¥ BER BINER
ik Rt R BRRA HE I @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AR%Txn
Executive directors HITEE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun - 1,203 4,000 - 5,203
Zhao Xiangti HIER - 688 - 40 728
Chen Yan RE (R0 %

(resigned on 30 August 201 1) 8 A 30 AE{E) - 390 - - 390
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt - 1,203 960 - 2,163
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Xu Zhao G % - - - 292
Zheng Fuya g=E 2143 - - - M3
Wang Ching ER 195 - - - 195
Total a5t 730 3484 4960 40 9,214
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7 ESHEM @
Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong BEEBARGHE1ERBENESH
Companies Ordinance are as follows (continued): M B250mT (8) -
2010
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
2 2R RIREA
ik EtEh LlcEza sTEIH @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE  ARETR  ARBTRT  AR%TR  ARET:

Executive directors HTEZE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun = ,201 2,048 = 3249
Zhao Xiangti HIER - 684 - 36 720
Chen Yan e - 782 - - 782
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt

(appointed on 20 May 2010) (R 201055 A 20 FEZ ) - 1,089 960 - 2,049
Non-executive director FHTEE
Chen Da Cin RER

(resigned on 20 May 2010) (20104 5 A 20 HEHE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEE
Xu Zhao AR 306 - - - 306
Zheng Fuya g=3 272 = = = 272
Wang Ching IR 2| - - - 2|
Total @it 799 3,756 3,008 36 7599

104 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two (2010: two) are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7.The aggregate of the emoluments

in respect of the other three (2010: three) individuals are as follows:

B O R M @

EEFMAL
hEsERFMALTHEME (20106 : W
L)REE  HFMRMZIHEE - £
=% (2010F : =%) ALHFHM 2%
nE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Salaries and other emoluments e hEMmET 3,658 3,696
Discretionary bonuses (RN 2,971 3,200
Retirement scheme contributions ROREFFT B 58 79 -

6,708 6,896

The emoluments of the three (2010: three) individuals with the highest

emoluments are within the following bands:

Z=%(2010F : =&) RBFMALH
FHANFTIRE :

Number of individuals

A8
2011 2010
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7L E 2,500,000 7 7T
(RMBI,621,000 to RMB2,027,000) (AR#1,621,000 &
AR 2,027,000 7T) -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7T Z 3,000,000 % 7T
(RMB2,027,001 to RMB2,432,000) (AR#¥ 2,027,001 &
AR¥ 2,432,000 7T) 3
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7T ZE 3,500,000 % 7T
(RMB2,432,001 to RMB2,837,000) (AR#¥ 2,432,001 L&
AR ¥ 2,837,000 7T) -
3 3
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9  PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 9 ZXKAREREZEAEGTE

COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company ARARERRHEAREEHANERE
includes a loss of RMB13,488,000 (2010: RMB21,760,000) which has been ERARANBEREABRANEER
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. AR ®13,488,0007C (20105 : AR
21,760,0007T) ©
10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 8REF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB830,819,000 (2010: RMB577,281,000) and the weighted average
number of shares of 1,806,983,275 ordinary shares (2010: 1,809,232,500

ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

BREXBNREARAR L BRE
RRABAEBGBABARE
830,819,0007T (2010F : AR ¥
577,281,00070) * A REFERE LT
N 19 & AR 1,806,983,2750K
(2010% : 1,809,232,500% 3& %)
ATEMT

()  Weighted average number of ordinary shares: (i) ETEBRNEFHEE
2011 2010
Issued ordinary shares R1A1H
as at | January BEETEBR 1,809,232,500 1,809,232,500
Effect of shares repurchased BRE@MEBENTE (2,249,225) =
Weighted average number of R 12 A 31 BE@
ordinary shares as at 31 December  JI#EFHE B 1,806,983,275 ,809,232,500
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREEEF

The amount of diluted eamings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence

during both the current and prior years.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

11 0% BERRE

The Group
r5H
Motor
vehicles
Plant and and other
Buildings machinery equipment Total
RER
EE HKERKSE Hittk e st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Tn AR¥TR ARWTR
Costs: B
At | January 2010 R2010F1A18 133,857 2,322,688 41,076 2,497,621
Additions N 46,658 1,402,443 4 &4 1,490,795
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B Bt B A 11,408 16,950 902 29,260
Transferred from MEZIRZEA
construction in progress 21,752 325,082 - 346,834
Disposal HE - (443) (2,748) (3,191)
At 3| December 2010 201012 A31 A 213675 4066720 80924 4361319
At | January 201 | K201 F1A1H 213,675 4,066,720 80,924 4,361,319
Additions 120 1,685 34,881 60,967 97,533
Transferred from MERIREEA
construction in progress 63,215 1,369,013 - 1,432,228
Disposal & - (87) (1,393) (1,480)
At 3| December 201 | m2011%€12 A31 R 278,575 5,470,527 140,498 5,889,600
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 11 9% BERZE @
The Group (continued)
rEE ()

Motor

vehicles

Plant and and other
Buildings machinery equipment Total

RER
EE HERESE Hitk Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR%®TR AR®TR AR®ETx

Accumulated depreciation R ENRERSE :

and impairment losses:
At | January 2010 201061818 (11,007) (280,088) (14,629) (305,724)
Charge for the year REFRTE (7.983) (141,162) (8,542) (157,687)
Provision for impairment FHRRE

(Note 5(c)) (Bf&E 5(c)) (39,115) (38,557) (413) (78,085)
Written back on disposal R E R EE - 232 2,642 2,874
At 31 December 2010 #2010 F 12 A 31 H (58,105) (459,575) (20,942) (538,622)
At | January 201 | B201MFE1A1H (58,105) (459,575) (20,942) (538,622)
Charge for the year REFRITE (9,219) (250,236) (16,273) (275,728)
Written back on disposal R & R EE - 4 923 927
At 31 December 201 | #2011 F 1231 H (67,324) (709,807) (36,292) (813,423)
Carrying amounts: REEE :
At 31 December 201 | #2011 F 12831 H 211,251 4,760,720 104,206 5,076,177
At 31 December 2010 #2010 F 12 A 31 H 155,570 3,607,145 59,982 3,822,697
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(2)

(®)

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

1 9% BERRE @

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly located in the (@) AEEYE BERIBFERT
PRC. °
At 31 December 201 I, certain of the Group's bank and other loans and (b) M2011%12A318 ' REEBEARA
bills payable were secured by the Group's plant and machinery with [ #2,334,932,0007T (20104 : A
carrying amount of RMB2,334,932,000 (2010: RMBI,962,929,000). R #1,962,929,0007T) KR 5 F 14
HERAEEERNE TRITNA
& FA RN RBEER -
Certain of the Group’s leased plant and machinery are considered as (c) AEBAMWNETHRERESEEE
being held under finance lease. The lease term is 25 years and represents RUARERERARE - ZHEH
a major part of the economic life of the leased plant and machinery. R25F - (EEERE RSB
Carrying amount of plant and machinery held under finance lease was as BERNAIRS - NRERERA
follows: HENHERESNREEEZS
nr
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETT
Carrying amount of plant and IR EMRER A RANRE R
machinery held under finance lease KEREREEE 23,613 25235
The Group has entered into long-term gas supply agreements with d) AEBEETEPEIRAREMHR
certain customers for periods up to 30 years. Certain of the Group's B - RRERAIF - AEE
buildings are located on land leased from these customers. Accordingly, ETEEURMELEFHEANT
building ownership certificate is not obtained in respect of such buildings. ke Bt FEERARESE
The carrying amount of such buildings amounted to RMB 101,594,000 at EmBEE - R2011F12A8318 -
31 December 201 | (2010: RMB97,204,000). TR EERBRBERARE
101,594,0007C (2010F : A R ¥
97,204,0007) °
At 3| December 201 |, the Group was in the process of applying for the (e) M2011%F128318 » KEFEEH

ownership certificate for certain buildings with an aggregate carrying
amount amounting to RMB29,503,000 (2010: RMB10,996,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitled

to lawfully and validly occupy and use of the above mentioned buildings.

BEEMARENETEENRE
BE @& A AR ¥29,503,0007T
(2010% : AR¥10,996,0007T)
ADRIEZRA  AEBEESE
RBERUERRERANLEFAAERE
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12 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 12 HEIR
The Group
S |
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TFR ARETT

At | January R1A1H 1,024,363 681,105
Additions sEn 1,400,546 782262
Transferred to property, plant and equipment B A% « BRE K& (1,432,228) (346,834)
Provision for impairment (Note 5(c)) FHRRME (M 5(c) - (92,170)
At 31 December »12A31H 992,681 1,024,363
During the reporting period, the Group leases certain equipment included in PAREHE  NEERER TR TH#%
construction in progress under finance lease. The lease term is 4 years, and at BRERT T - EREEENHZ - B
the end of the lease term the Group has the option to purchase the leased EHNRAR4E  TEEHERRKAEE
equipment at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. Carrying FXUN-—HAERERERENEEER
amount of construction in progress held under finance lease as at 3| 7o M20115E12A318 - EEIREHAR
December 2011 was RMBI43,000,000. EHERSZREBERARE

143,000,0007T °

I3 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 #ﬂ%ﬁﬁ*”
Lease prepayments comprise interests in leasehold land held for own use HERNKERRLERERTHIES
under operating leases located in the PRC as follows: ARES .fﬁﬁiiﬁl%ﬁ 25 JZIDT :
The Group
* %N

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETT

Land use rights held under long term leases REHEBRTHANLHERE 126,243 65,043
The land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the operating T ERAEROFRAEHERANER

lease periods of 50 years. EH

At 31 December 201 I, certain of the Group's bank and other loans were R2011F12A318 - KEBEARARK
secured by the Group’s land use rights with the carrying amount of 10,792,000t ( 2010 : A R %
RMB10,792,000 (2010: RMB3,204,000). 3,204,0007T) Mt E A EEHAEE

BRMETROIMEMERIEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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14 BREE

The Group
e
Know-how Software Total
ERK LS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®T T ARBT R
Cost: B
At | January 2010 M2010F1 A1 H 12,167 279 12,446
Additions 20 2,800 333 3,133
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y B B 2 /) 9,640 — 9,640
At 3| December 2010 201012 A31 B 24,607 612 25219
At | January 2011 »2011F1H18 24,607 612 25,219
Additions 20 49,800 699 50,499
At 31 December 201 | M2011 12 A31 B 74,407 1,311 75,718
Accumulated amortisation R BENREESE :

and impairment losses:

At | January 2010 R 2010461 A1 H (2,792) (57) (2,849)
Charge for the year AN 2 (629) (51 (680)
Provision for impairment FHERE (8,751) = (8,751)
At 31 December 2010 2010412 A 31 A (12,172) (108) (12,280)
At | January 201 | RK2011 %1818 (12,172) (108) (12,280)
Charge for the year REHH (1,781) (94) (1,875)
At 31 December 201 | ®2011F12 A31 8 (13,953) (202) (14,155)
Carrying amounts: fREE®E :
At 31 December 201 | 12011 %12 A31 8 60,454 1,109 61,563
At 31 December 2010 M 2010F 12 A31 H 12,435 504 12,939
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I5 RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASE 15 BURAERER
The gross investment and present value of receivables relating to future BEAAHENREHEGZIARR
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable finance lease agreement or MERENZH  BERRREREMK
arrangement accounted for as finance lease are as follows: HENEREeBERERTEREZD
mF
The Group
A&EHE
2011 2010

Present Present

value of the value of the
minimum lease Gross minimum lease Gross
payments investment payments investment

EEHE REHE
NRRE BRAE NHRE BRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTRT AR®TH

Within | year —FR 2,117 2,245 2,117 2,245
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFER 1,898 2,245 1,898 2,245
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRERFRN 4,603 6,734 4,603 6,734
After 5 years hEE 7,182 18,650 7,747 20,895

13,683 27,629 14,248 29,874
Total =X 15,800 29,874 16,365 32,119
Less: total future interest income B RIRF B A BT (14,074) (15,754)
Present value of lease receivables T EEW IR E 15,800 16,365
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16 HHE DR ERS

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBET T
Investment in subsidiaries R B AR IRE

— unlisted shares, at cost —3E mﬂxf CEBRRAE 1,044,169 1,044,169
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) KB B (PsE) 2,572,185 1,674,175
3,616,354 2,718,344

Note: The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no izt : RWBARFEAEKE ESEE

fixed term of repayment. (& FE B SR o

The following list contains the subsidiaries of the Group at 3| December

ATHIRBER2011E12A31B REE

201 1: HO 8 2 )
Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully B RER LA Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital  Company Subsidiary activities
ERITM  ARF  HELF
NEEW R LR B BREX BA BE IEXH
Yingde Gases Investment BVI USD 14,700 100% - Investment Holding
Limited ("Yingde B\/I”)
BERBREERD RERZES 14700 %7 BEER
(T&f (%J%Jﬁﬂi%m
Yingde Gases (Hong Kong) Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HKD 10,000 — [00% Investment Holding
BRRR (BE) ARAH BA 10,000 %7 RARK
Yingde Investment (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. PRC USD78,000,000 = 100%  Investment Holding
BERE (L) FRAR P E 78,000,000 % 7T BEER
Baotou Yingde Investment Co., Ltd. PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
BRBRRERRAT] FE AR 20,000,000 7T BAER
BEERBEEEERAA

2011 FF#
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[6 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16 HHBAANESR (8

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully ARG LA Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital  Company Subsidiary activities
E#THM  AXFE  KWELF
DEEH MR R BREX t=20) e IEXK
Baotou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB520,000,000 - 100% Production and sales
BRRERRERAA HE AR 520,000,000 7 of industrial gases
TERHEETXRE
Changshu Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC UsD12,000,000 = 100% Production and sales
FARERBARLA f 12,000,000 7T of industrial gases
TERBEIXRE
Changzhou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD 14,700,000 - 100% Production and sales
EMNBERBERAA R 14,700,000 % T of industrial gases
HERHEIXRE
Chongging Da'an Yingde PRC RMB2 1,800,000 = 100% Production and sales
Special Gases Co, Ltd. H AE# 21,800,000 7T of industrial gases
ERARBERE TERBETXRE
REERRA
Hancheng Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD26,400,000 = 100% Production and sales
BRBERBERAA f 26,400,000 £ 7T of industrial gases
TERHBETERE
Hebei Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB152,000,000 = [00% Production and sales
At BEREERAR I AR 152,000,000 70 of industrial gases
HERHEIXRE
Hengyang Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB 120,000,000 - 70%  Production and sales
HEREREERAR HE AR 120,000,000 7T of industrial gases

EERHEETERE

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16 B E L7 HEDS (8

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully B RERLL A Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital  Company Subsidiary activities
ERTM A2F  HELR
DNEER AR LR B BREX BR 58 TEXH
Huai'an Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB64,000,000 - 100% Production and sales
ERBRERBERAT B AR® 64,000,000 70 of industrial gases
TERHEETERE
Hunan Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB246,000,000 = 100% Production and sales
HERERBERAR i AR 246,000,000 7T of industrial gases
HERBEIXRE
Guizhou Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC UsD20,000,000 - [00%  Production and sales
EMNRERBERAA HE 20,000,000 % 7T of industrial gases
TERHETERRE
Jiangsu Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB44,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
IHRERRERAA h AR 44,000,000 7T of industrial gases
FERBETERE
Laiwu Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC UsD 10,049,964 = 100%  Production and sales
RERERBERRA f 10,049,964 % T of industrial gases
HERHEIXRE
Nanjing Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC UsSD2,100,000 - 100%  Production and sales
HREERBERAR I 2,100,000 % T of industrial gases
TERHETERRE
Rizhao Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2 19,400,000 = 100%  Production and sales
BREERBERRAA h AEH 219,400,000 7T of industrial gases
TERHBETERE
Shaanxi Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB 10,000,000 = 100% Production and sales
RERERABERAA HE AR 110,000,000 7T of industrial gases

YERBETIXRE

EESBEEERQA
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[6 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16 HHBAANESR (8

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully ARG LA Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital  Company Subsidiary activities
E#THM  AXFE  KWELF
DEEH MR R BREX t=20) e IEXK
Shanxi Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD20,000,000 - 100% Production and sales
AR EREBERAA HE 20,000,000 %7 of industrial gases
TERHEETXRE
Tianjin Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB60,000,000 = 100% Production and sales
RERERBERRAA f AR 60,000,000 7T of industrial gases
TERBEIXRE
Yangzhou Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC UsD20,001,170 - 100% Production and sales
BNBERBERAR FE 20,001,170 & 7T of industrial gases
HFERHETERE
Zhangjiagang Yingda Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD20,000,000 = 100% Production and sales
RREBERBERAA f 20,000,000 7T of industrial gases
TERHBETERE
Zhuhai Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB 140,000,000 = 100% Production and sales
KERERBERAR I AR 140,000,000 7 of industrial gases
HERHEIXRE
Zhuzhou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD8,000,000 - 100% Production and sales
BNBREREERAR FE 8,000,000 & 1T of industrial gases
FERHETERRE
Zibo Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD9,750,000 = 100% Production and sales
HERERRERAA f 9,750,000 & 7T of industrial gases
HERHBETERE
Anyang Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD38,900,000 = 100% Under construction
ZEREERBERAF P 38,900,000 %7 i
Changzhi Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD2,160,000 = 100% Under construction
ABRREARAA P E 2,160,000 %7 ided

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

B O R M @

16 B E L7 HEDS (8

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully B RERLL A Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital  Company Subsidiary activities
ERTM A2F  HELR

DNEER AR LR B BREX BR 58 TEXH
ChaohuYingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD3,750,000 - 1009%  Under construction
ERBRRBERAT FE 3,750,000 % 7T i

Gaoyou Yingda Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD3,300,000 - 100%  Under construction
ABREREBARAA P E 3,300,000 % 7T i

Hanzhong Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC UsD20,000,000 = 100%  Under construction
RTBRREERD P E 20,000,000 % 7T i

Karamay Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD4,980,100 - 100%  Under construction
RAUBERERBARAT FE 4,980,100 %70 i

Liangshan Yingde Gases Co, Ltd PRC - - 100%  Under construction
FLUREREERAA hE ER

Neijiang Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD6,000,000 = 100% Under construction
NIRBREARA P E 6,000,000 %7 i

Pinghu Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD20,000,000 = 100%  Under construction
FHAREREARARA FE 20,000,000 % 7T i3~

Qinzhou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd PRC USD950,000 - [00% Under construction
INBRRABERA i 950,0003% 7T £
QigiharYingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD4,500,000 = 100%  Under construction
EERABRRBARAR P E 4,500,000 %70 i

Tianjin Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC UsD2,250,000 = 100%  Under construction
REBEREARAA FE 2,250,000 % 7T i~
TonglingYingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC UsD 12,000,000 - 100%  Under construction
SARBRRARERA FE 12,000,000 %70 i

Xuzhou Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC RMB42,500,000 = 80% Under construction
HHBRRBERD P E AR 42,500,000 7T i

BER
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16 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 HHMEBARNER ()
Ownership

Place of interest held by

incorporation/ Issued and fully ARG LA Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital  Company Subsidiary activities

E#THM  AXFE  KWELF
DEEH MR R BREX t=20) e IEXK
Yancheng Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD5,000,000 - 100% Under construction
ERRRREARAR i 5,000,000 %70 i
Yingkou Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD 18,500,000 - 100% Under construction
ENBRRBERAR HE 18,500,000 5% 7T a3
Zhangjiagang Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD 10,000,000 = 75%  Under construction
RRBREREERAA A 10,000,000 %70 Er
Zhangjiagang Yingdi Special PRC USD4,000,000 - 100% Under construction
Gases Co, Ltd.

RREBBNBREARAR i 4,000,000 %70 i<
Zhangjiagang Yingding Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD30,000,000 = 100% Under construction
RREBFRBERAA i 30,000,000 %7 i
Zhejiang Zhihai Chemical PRC USD1,800,000 = 100% Under construction

Engineering Equipment

Construction Co, Ltd.

MIEELIR i 1,800,000 % 7T i
TRERRA
Ace Turbo Group Limited BVI USDI - 100% Import of equipment
REEUES | & EORBRE
Jiangsu Wanteng Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Transportation

(previously named “Jiangsu

Yingde Logistics Co, Ltd")

IHERYRERAA H AR 5,000,000 7T &y
(FifE A [IsAR
MRERAR])
118 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

16 HHELTNES (8

Ownership
interest held by

incorporation/ Issued and fully B RERLL A Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital  Company Subsidiary activities
RO A2F  KWELF
DNEER AR LR B BREX BR 58 TEXH
Beijing Yingde Qingda Technical Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB20,000,000 - 85% Consulting service
ERBEEAMKERALA i AR 20,000,000 7T Rl
Jiangyin Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd PRC USD500,000 = [00% Dormant
TRBRERBERAR HE 500,000 %7t EEREERY
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17 REBERATNER
The Group
%
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF R ARBTT
Share of net assets EFEE 399,756 100,000

The Group’s interests in associates are individually and in aggregate not

material to the Group's financial condition or results of operations for the year.

The Group's associates are unlisted and established in the PRC.

AEERBERRNESERENRAHHA
SHARERFNHBRRALEEXERBKE
FE AKENBELRAYAFLTAAR

RA BT ©

BER

BEBER2A
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7 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

17 REERANER (@

Proportion of

ownership interests

PR s b Bl
Particulars of ~ Group’s Held
Place of issued and effective by the Principal
Name of associate incorporation and operation paid up capital interest subsidiary activities
EROTA4E £EAR WELAF
BENTEH EANSES 3 BB i BE IEEK
Anyang Zhongying PRC RMB 300,000,000 22.22% 2222%  Production and sale
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. of chemical products
ZhEFRILERRAR FE AR% 300,000,000 7T TERHELIER
Gansu Hongsheng New PRC RMB 666,670,000 45% 45%  Production and sale
Energy Co,, Ltd. of chemical products
HREAMERBRAR E AR 666,670,000 T HERHEELIER

In June 201 I, the Group signed an agreement with Jiuguan Iron and Steel
(Group) Co., Ltd., the sole shareholder of Gansu Hongsheng New Energy Co,,
Ltd. (“Gansu Hongsheng") for enlarging the paid-in capital of Gansu
Hongsheng. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group made a capital contribution
of RMB300,000,000 in cash to Gansu Hongsheng and obtained 45% equity

interest in Gansu Hongsheng.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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I8 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 18 HittkRBEE
The Group
33
2011 2010
RMB'000 RMB000

AR®TR ARBTT

Prepayment for property, plant ME - BE KRB

and equipment and land use right TP AN TER R 903,393 309,579
Long-term receivables =31 23,618 45913
Other investment in equity securities HiRAE SR E 12,727 12,727
939,738 368,219

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 BURM R E B KRE

The Group The Company

rEE AN
201 | 2010 201 | 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR

Trade receivables R BR TR 447,964 332,695 - -
Bills receivable BhRFE 238,519 153,728 - -
Less: allowance for doubtful debts &, © REREMH (20,508) (20,437) - -
665,975 465,986 - =

Deposits and other receivables e REMEK TR 363,256 282938 1,204 900
1,029,231 748,924 1,204 900
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within T8 HI R A R LR 5 % L At M R IR R S
one year. Credit terms may be granted to customers, depending on the credit —FRKE - ERBEREHERNETF
assessment carried out by the management on an individual basis. FENGEENMG BTHEENEE

/H\E o

EESBEEERQA
2011 FF#
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|9 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables and bills
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the ageing analysis

as of the year end date:

19 BURERREAERKE @

(a) RERDHT
FENCR TR R E fth FE R IB B FE AT
KRS R ERER Nk REEE
%) REERBRRATZIIWT

The Group
EN 4. |
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR®TTT

Current EIER 555,218 364,755
Less than | month past due AT ER—EA 86,016 27,706
| to 3 months past due BH—ZE={EA 11,906 40,051

More than 3 months but less
than 12 months past due BEA=EZE+_EA 12,835 33,474
Amounts past due BHIEE 110,757 101231
665,975 465,986

The credit terms for trade receivables are generally 30 to 45 days. The
bills receivable are normally due within 180 days from the date of issuing.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note 29(a).

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off

against trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(j)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as

B OB 75

19 FEWRARA R E b B KGR E ()
EUERRRERRBNREE

(b)

FEM AR 5 B FE M R B ) R (B 1R At

ARGE  BEAEERRRERK
R B EIE - ERLERT 0 R
EEERERPRERES

i (2R ME2()() °

REEBREFENEH2FIMT

xR e

follows:
The Group
A%E
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARET
At | January m1A1E 20,437 10,721
Impairment loss recognised FERER EREE 7,253 13,082
Whrite-back of impairment loss (B BB B (7,182) (3,366)
At 31 December R12A31H 20,508 20,437

During the year ended 3| December 2011, trade receivables of the
Group, related to certain merchant customers that were in financial
difficulty and debt disputes, amounting to RMB7,253,000 was determined

to be impaired.

Trade and bills receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Trade and bills receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are

still considered fully recoverable.

HE2011E12A31B L EE » A&

E’\J%%?%%ﬁ' mr%ﬁﬁﬂ'f\/\u

AR #7,253,0007T B B 1 W 2 A

REBANERLERE -

BEAR B H b AR R (E A U R 3K
FENEEREUBEANTPE -
EURPIHUREANRNE

ﬁl o

E & AR N7 R E A U R
RRENERSRSUERARESR
RENBECRNBURF - R
=EHE

A==

RS EEEREHI
ETNFEERE L ERBHRBEER
ARz BNE - Rt EehE

BERRERER o

BER

BEBER2A

2011 FF#

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

AN

& 1 B 7% 3R 3} MY R (@)

20

21

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits are pledged to banks mainly for issuing bank accepted bills to

the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalent comprise:

20 EEARTEX

EERBRTERIBRAAREETHN

BROTERAREMERTRT

21 RERREEED

(a) RERBESEENEE
The Group The Company
K% AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT AR®TR AR®TH

Cash at bank and in hand BIFEHEIRE

958,280

970,458 51,860 219,125

The Group's cash and bank balances in the PRC amounted to
RMB761,618,000 at 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB714,091,000). RMB is

not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the

PRC is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC

government.

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial

position are the following amounts denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

AEER2011F12A31BEFE
BReRBROEHRBARE
761,618,0007C (2010F : A R #
714,091,0007T) ° AR¥EIL AR A
BRERNEYE  KESENTEA
X BIHUR B i e IMNE B HI TR o
FBRARANRE KA EEY
BETIHEBUEERNNEEEIN
MBS ERRIE

The Group The Company
A%E AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
’000 '000 ’000 ‘000
Fr T Fr T
Hong Kong dollars BT 10,022 104,942 573 100,296
United States dollars xETT 43,752 69,500 8,069 20,159
Euros BT 2,947 124 68 32

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary and non-controlling interests:

On 14 May 2010 and 14 September 2010, the Group acquired 95% and
5% equity interests in Chongging Da'an Yingde Special Gases Co., Ltd.,
respectively, with total consideration of RMB48,020,000.

The following summarises the consideration transferred, and the
recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the

acquisition date:

21

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

RERBEEEN @

by WEHBARURFERRRE
%

R2010F 57140 F12010F9 A 14
B AEESHKBTERAZR
BB REEER D A195%FM5% KX
B BEXNHERARE
48,020,0007T °

XNHERBEERSHNEESRS
EHADT

RMB’000

ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE K& 29,260
Other non-current assets HMERBEE 15815
Inventories and receivables FENEWRIE 20,285
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEED 1,008
Bank and other loans RITREMERK (12,000)
Payables JE 1~ TR IE (3,703)
Deferred tax liabilities BREBIBEEE (2,645)
Total net identifiable assets A ERFE ER 48,020
Consideration transferred — cash HEEZE-RE 48,020

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

ERREHBARINAERAES
EBYRLFEIMAT :

2010

RMB'000

ARBTT

Cash and cash equivalents acquired EENReREEEEY 1,008
Cash consideration ReHE (48,020)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BeRREEBYRLFE (47,012)

EESBEEERQA
2011 FF#
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22 BANK AND OTHER LOANS

(a) The bank and other loans comprise:

22 ROTKEMENR
(a) ROTREMEREE

The Group The Company
EN 4. | N
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFR ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR
Short-term loans RHER 320,000 370,000 - -
Current portion
of long-term loans RAERO AN H 795,520 413963 231,917 -
[,115,520 783,963 231,917 -
Long-term portion of
long-term loans RPERORBIHH 2,084,823 1,132,137 695,751 =
3,200,343 1,916,100 927,668 -
The interest rates per annum of bank loans and other loans were: RITREMERNFNES
The Group The Company
FEE FRF
2011 2010 2011 2010
Short-term loans RHER 6.6%7.9%  53%-6.1% - -
Long-term loans REAER LIBOR+2.25%  55%- 104%  LIBOR+2.25% -
or 5.4%-10.4%
GES:TEES RBBTEE
FER=X FEA =X
+2.25% +2.25%

g 5.4%-10.4%

Interest rates comprise fixed rates and floating rates based on the

London Interbank offered Rate (“LIBOR").

126 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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22 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 22 BITREMER (&)

(@) The bank and other loans comprise (continued): (a) BTREMERBE () :
Included in the bank and other loans in the statement of financial position BBRARANRITREMERE
are the following amounts denominated in a currency other than the ETINAEBAE RO AN
functional currency of the entity to which they relate: M B BHTIE

The Group The Company
*%H AL
2011 2010 2011 2010
’000 '000 ’000 '000
Fr T T T
United States dollars ET 150,000 - 150,000
(b) The bank and other loans were repayable as follows: (b) ROTRHAEREEHRAOT :
The Group The Company
K% AL
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT AR®TR ARETR

Within | year —FR 1,115,520 783,963 231,917 -
After | year but —Fi&E
within 2 years MER 998,558 361,323 463,834 -
After 2 years but [GEC 3!
within 5 years hER 1,019,602 632,480 231,917 —
After 5 years TFi& 66,663 138,334 —
3,200,343 1,916,100 927,668 —

BERERBEEERLA 127
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22 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 22 RITRHAMEN (&)
(c) The bank and other loans were secured as follows: () RTREAERERBERAT :
The Group The Company
S 3L VNG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AREBTT AR®BTR AR®TH

Bank loans RITER
— secured —BEH 2,222,675 1,866,100 - -
— unsecured — A 927,668 = 927,668 =
Other loans - secured HipER—FIE#E 50,000 50,000 - -
3,200,343 1,916,100 927,668 =
(d) The carrying value of assets secured for bank and other loans were as d) BETREMEREANEERE
follows: BENT:
The Group The Company
A&EE ARF
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT AR®TR AR®TH
Property, plant and mE - BE KR
equipment B 2,334,932 1,909,092 - -
Lease prepayments MEFBEMRIE 10,792 3,204 - -
2,345,724 1,912,296 - -
128 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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23 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

23 BABRRREMCENRE

The Group The Company
AEE LN
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TFR ARBTT AR®TR ARET:R

Trade payables JE 1~ BR 3K 25,364 9,764 - =
Bills payable ANESE 269,500 475,104 - -
Payable for property, E R E L
plant and equipment e 5RIB 911,209 671,208 - —
Dividends payable to FE 51 FE 3 AR IR 3R BV AR 2.
non-controlling shareholders 6,480 - - -
Accrued expenses and other HREAREMENKIE
payables 150,463 88,219 16,108 7,085
Amounts due to a subsidiary e B B 22 Rl 3R I8 - - 16,744 16,744
1,363,016 1,244,295 32,852 23,829
Included in trade and other payables in the statement of financial position are B S A 0 2% 1 B B 5 BR 3 % L e B A 3K
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional BETIEBUERNINGEEE N
currency of the entity to which they relate: BT ERNNE
The Group The Company
A&EE ARF
2011 2010 2011 2010
’000 '000 ’000 '000
Fr T Fr T
United States dollars e 1,736 331 1,245 -
Hong Kong dollars BT 1,625 1,625 - =

BERERBEEERLA 129
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23 BfRRARE A A HKE ()
FERBERNERATOT :

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

The Group
REE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Due within | month or on demand — {8 A A BB Z K 25,364 8,417
Due after | month but within 3 months —(EA%BE=EARNIEH - 1,323
Due after 3 months but within 6 months = @A &ENEANEH - 24
25,364 9,764

24 MEHEEE
R2011E128318 - AEERENHR
EHERREENMT

24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE
At 3| December 2011, the Group had obligations under finance lease

repayable as follows:

2011 2010

Present
value of the
minimum lease

Total
minimum lease

Present
value of the
minimum lease

Total
minimum lease

payments payments payments payments

REHEE BREHEE REHE REHE

NRBEE (RELHE NHRE NRELHE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®BTnR ARETT ARETT

Within | year —FR 10,525 12,497 2,963 3,200

After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 34,327 40,388 2743 3,200

After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRFER 67,924 74,689 7,070 9,600

After 5 years TFi& 17,585 43,200 18,299 46,400

119,836 158,277 28,112 59,200

Total st 130,361 170,774 31,075 62,400

Less: total future interest expenses & : &K FI S & B 5 (40,413) (31,325)

Present value of lease obligations ~HEBEIR(E 130,361 31,075
130 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 AR
2011 2010
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
B4 # B £H in &8 G|
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBF T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREE
USD0.000001 each 0.000001 E£TH) MK 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTHHE :
At | January n1A1H 1,809,232,500 12 1,809,232,500 12
Shares repurchased A& 7 (21 B (2,402,500) - - -
At 31 December m12H31H 1,806,830,000 12 1,809,232,500 12
Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the board of directors on 7 BE201MFI1R7TENESTERE - AR
January 2011, the Company repurchased 2,402,500 shares of its own ordinary AIH 20114 1 A LA #8%813,683,0007% 7T
shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of (FBE M AK®11,684,0007T) KK {EXE
HKD 13,683,000 (equivalent to RMBI1,684,000) in January 201 1. The lowest B FTIEIBE 72,402, 5000 @M + A+
and the highest price paid were HKD5.60 per share and HKD5.70 per share M ENSSEEED 5 AER5.60%
respectively. All the shares repurchased have been cancelled and accordingly JLAB. 708 T - ZFRMHENEER K
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of i MARA 2B BITRATNE R
these shares. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of LB EE BERODAINZEE
RMBI 1,684,000 was charged to the share premium. AR#11,684,000C 2 R R & E+
B o

BERERBEEERLA 131
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26 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

@)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of the

Group's reserves is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity. Details of the changes in the Company's individual components of

equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

26 FERRE
(a) EREARBILY
REBRANBNNBROBHE
CR2IEAHEEEGRT - A4
T AR B2 ENMER
MEBBHFE2IMT -

Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
B B4 a8 R EER CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR¥T=x
At | January 2010 R 2010F 1A 1H 12 2,995,502 (58,661) 2,936,853
Total comprehensive REGENEHERE
income for the year - - (21,760) (21,760)
At 31 December 2010 M 2010612 A 31H 12 2,995,502 (80,421) 2,915,093
At | January 201 | R2011FE1A1H 12 2,995,502 (80,421) 2,915,093
Total comprehensive REGENERERE
income for the year - - (13,488) (13,488)
Dividends approved in REFEHAENRS
respect of the previous year - - (180,683) (180,683)
Purchase of own shares FR 17 [0 % - (11,684) - (11,684)
At 31 December 201 | »2011E 124311 12 2,983,818 (274,592) 2,709,238

Details of movements of the Company's share capital are set out in Note

25.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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26 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year:

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

26 RERRE (@

(b)

RE
(i) AFEMTARABRROK
B
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB T ARETT

Final dividend proposed after R & HRE
the end of the reporting RENRER

period of RMBO.13 (2010: RMBO.10) TEBRARE 0.1370 (2010 F -
per ordinary share AR 0.107T) HREKE

234,888 180,683

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
date has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the company

HE R EE D TRA R
BYRRBERARERAA

f&e

(i) NAFAREREXNFAR

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during ARR EFEARE
the vyear:
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARET T
Final dividend in respect of the RAFRA#EREZ N EFE
previous financial year, approved AHKRE  BREBRARE
and paid during the year, of 0.107T (2010 % : &)
RMBO.10 (2010: Nil) per
ordinary share 180,683 =
(c) Share premium (c) RHEE

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary courses

of business.

REMEHBARE  ARANK
s B B EX N EIRN T RR
M REBE - EERER XN DK
FRFRE BHR - ARANAE
AEXBBRETECEDRET

EESBEEERQA
2011 FF#
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26 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

C)

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, appropriations to the statutory reserve were made at a certain
percentage of profit after taxation determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC. The statutory reserve can
be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or increasing capital of the

subsidiaries and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly included the difference between the carrying value
of non-controlling interest previously acquired and the consideration
paid, and the amount recognised within equity in respect of conversion

of a loan in prior years.

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 201 |, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders

RMB2,709,226,000 (2010: RMB2,915,081,000).

of the Company was

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic

conditions.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011

26 RERRE (@

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

EERME
READAETENHEAR A
BERMAA  ZFRRARTEE
AR RIR AR B E K - KRB A
BNETEA LD EEAT M -
EERENARNERRTERLE
I BARER « RERIN - %
BAERARDIK

o

Hivfite

Hitt £ B R AT AR
RESMAHENREEENE
BARNAIFEERE RN BT
HRNEE -

A R E

2011128318 » A RTA
ARERREANRREEAAR
#2,709,226,0007T (20105 : AR
#2,915,081,0007T) °

BXERE

AEEEREANTIRBERRRE
AEEREZENE)  BABB
T BEBRKFRENERERK
BEBKAREHE  HEEAK
REHORRE AR BAEARE R

M

AEEETPEHFEREEREER
Rig - ERERRBRDHR (7T5EE
BEFKTE) BRIFOBARR A
Kz RRERNTE - THE
ERREEHEEARARE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

27 Material related party transactions

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts
paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in Note 7 and certain of the

highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

21 EXBBAERS

AEEWRERBARHM  BREENET
RENX A FARAEZHORAREMR
ASBENIMTETREFHFMALHOR
BT

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®ETT

Short-term employee benefits HEEE BT 11,475 12,300
Post-employment benefits BER 2 18 7 40 36
1,515 12,336

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 5(b)).

The Group participates in various defined contribution post-employment
benefit plans organised by municipal and provincial governments for its

employees. Further details are disclosed in Note 5(b).

There were no other significant related party transactions during both the

current and prior years.

FMeEtATEIRA] (2RHKE
5(b)) °

FEBREERZ2MT STBRME K
FaABnSBERRRBERRENG
8l - FEEMEEOHEE -

FERRZI - 2HFREMARFRER
BHEMBEABBIRLS -

EESBEEERQA
2011 FF#
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28 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

28 RERFBAE

(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEE
At 31 December 2011, the Group had capital commitments for R2011F12A318 + AEE Y%
acquisition and construction of properties and equipment as follows: RERBHOBENERNEREAESR
HmT
The Group
FEHE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBFTT
Authorised and contracted for EREAEFTH 2,861,007 833,007
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRITL 3,853,080 2,134,282
6,714,087 2,967,289
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEERE

At 3| December 201 I, the Group's total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and properties,

are payable as follows:

M2011E128318 » BB A
RERNREBRNEB LAY
¥NARZEREMNTEEZSM
—F :

The Group
r&E
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETTT

Within | year —FR 12,133 9,542
After | year but within 5 years —FRERFRN 18,355 16,434
After 5 years Ak 46,287 35,821

76,775 61,797

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

136 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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28 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(©

(d)

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities at 31 December 201 |

and 2010.

At 31 December 2011, contingent liabilities of the Company were as

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

28 AERIABEE @

(c)

SEEE
R2010% % 20115128318 + &
EETESASZHAE -

R2011E128318  ARAHHEAE

follows: BEMT :
The Company
VN
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBF T
Guarantees given to banks ARBHETHEB AR
by the Company in respect of bank RITE KM AR
loans of certain subsidiaries TR ER 1,120,000 1,000,000
Legal contingencies (d) FEEEBHE

The Group is the defendant in certain lawsuit as well as the plaintiff in
other proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While the
outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuit or other proceedings cannot be
estimated at present, management believes that any resulting liabilities
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or

operating results of the Group.

REBRETRRFDFHORE
R AEEHTHRAE M RAT
MRE - BERMBEEEELHK
BER  AERDREMFANG
ROBEEBMEEMALIENE
ERTEHARENRER R KL
EREEREANEETE

EESBEEERQA
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies

and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk and concentration risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. The management has a credit policy in place and the

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer's
past history of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are generally due within 30 to 45 days from the date of
billing. Moreover, extended credit terms are granted to certain on-site
customers depending on the credit assessment carried out by the

management on an individual basis.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk and concentration risk (continued)

Significant amounts of revenue are derived from a limited number of on-
site customers. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At 31 December 2011, 28% (2010:
32%) and 46% (2010: 68%) of the total trade and bills receivables were
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively. The Group has no significant credit risk with any of these
customers since the Group maintains stable business relationships with
these large customers. Trade receivables are unsecured and denominated
in RMB, and are derived from revenues earned from operations arising in
the PRC. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers' financial condition and generally does not require collateral

on trade receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note
9.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the

Group to credit risk.

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

29 BREBREERAAGE @

(a)

FERBKEEETRR (&)

FEREREREEBEROBSH
RAEP - A5EEERRIERSE
EEFHENEHAYE - BPA
RITERERNENRBEEHR
BhEeELAYE BYERANE
o 12011128310 - AEBK
RARAT R AR P YRR E R
FHRE B D B FEIER R K
FENAF£EM28% (2010F ¢
32%) % 46% (20104 : 68%) ° A
RENMZEAEPREERENS
fElE  ALHZERFPEBER
FERRE - BKERERR - UA
REHE EmRRETBEEBLMH
BRI et - REBHER P
BARRFEETEETME - —KM
BRI B R R o

BRAEERBRAAE FHBRR KT
BHSREENGEER -

RS B R PR MORR 30 % L A R AR
BHEERBRAE 8K EFEHNMH
190

AEEYERHEMTESAEE
AZEERBNER -
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2011 FF#

139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
& Ot Bt 7 3R 3R B 5 @)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency exchange risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place through PBOC
or other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the PBOC that would be subject to a

managed float against an unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside
the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign currency (which
depends on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the Group) or

must be arranged through the PBOC with government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are transacted in
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on financial
assets and financial liabilities that are denominated in currencies other
than Renminbi. Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi against
foreign currencies can affect the Group's results. The Group did not

hedge its foreign currency exposure.

A5 percent strengthening of Renminbi against United States dollars at
the respective year end dates would decrease profit after tax by the
amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant.

29 BBEREERAAEE (@

(b)

SEE L B
ARBAAERLBBING - FTH
BRARBHIINER HERBT
BARBRITIAMERERBLET
NEEE - NEXHFARMMER
RPBARBRITAENER - ZE
ZeR-EFFREERNTRN
PHRR -

INERT - BRTERINANNE
o BRINER A (BUAR A EE
MASNESIE R B ) BORR A - AR
B AR BRBARBITR -

R EBFEE RSB
AR5 - ARERARBUIM
EpESHEN S RAENSBE
BEATIBERLAR - ARBY
R EY R EARENE
& - REBFHHEENEERR -

RERSER - ARBHETHE
5% & (A BRI St & B 25
WT - ZANBRAMBFERE -
LERAE  RETE -

The Group
F&EH
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBF T
Effect on profit METE (33,688) 23,684
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency exchange risk (continued)

A 5 percent weakening of Renminbi against United States dollars at the
respective year end dates would have had the equal but opposite effect
on the above currencies to the amount shown above, on the basis that

all other variables remain constant.

Liquidity risk
As at 31 December 2011, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its

current assets by RMB375,609,000.

In 2012 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations to meet
its debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain adequate
external financing to meet its committed future capital expenditures. As
at 31 December 2011, the Group had banking facilities with several PRC
commercial banks providing loan finance up to approximately RMB886

million, of which approximately RMB715 million was utilised.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group for the twelve months ending 3|
December 2012. Based on such forecast, the directors have determined
that adequate liquidity exists to finance the working capital and capital
expenditure requirements of the Group during that period. In preparing
the cash flow forecast, the directors have considered historical cash
requirements of the Group as well as other key factors, including the
availability of the above-mentioned loan finance which may impact the
operations of the Group during the next twelve-month period. The
directors are of the opinion that the assumptions and sensitivities which
are included in the cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all
assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject to inherent
limitations and uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions may

not be realised.

& LA IS SRR M 5 @)

29 BREBREERAAGE @
)

(b)

(c)

18 BE 3 LR (4
REMEEE - ARBHETEE
5%« BEHFIBNEDE HNSE
R BRBFER - HHiHE
BEBHARERETE -

RBESER
2011128318 - AEEH RS
BELULRBDEES AR
375,609,0007T °

2012F RUAREE - AEEHR
BEEMATERARNAEB# R
RAEERSFRANEMNEES
HEK i N RASEREGEINEER
BB RRE RENEAERT
RN - M2011F12A318 - A%
BEGZRTEBERTHNERR
B RESEOARKEET
MRITRE - WARK7158ETT
BEWER -

ARRIEFHAEEHZE2012F12
AR L 12 AR &R ERAE
TTHBNEHN - BEBEELEA -
EERRAEENRDEERIUE
NZARNEEEEREAMER
BRo-EREBETERAR  E
EERDERTASENELR S
ERMEMFERR KR EHEL
MATE e B AREERK12( A H
AEENEFNAREE - E58
RE - BHeneBARBENRS
FEREREEN - BRENMA
REXTHAARZRMR - HHH2
HNRESAAGETEERM
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(©

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group has to maintain a suitable level of liquidity to finance the daily
operation, capital expenditure and repayment of borrowings. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.

The following tables show details the remaining contractual maturities at
the year end date of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates) and the earliest date the

Group can be required to pay.

29 BERAKBREERAD

(c)

AEE (@)
RBESLRER (&)
AEERBRBEENORDER KT
NHEEER AT RERR
o AEENBRETREERE
MEHNRBESF R BREA
ERZANRTE  THRRTEE#
BRANFCRBEARRTIEZSH
KEDRGRRNARERE  UE
Nﬁiﬁ%@&ﬁﬁﬁbwiﬂﬁi%x °

REARAOTNFUARERE (B

ERBEAOMEFENFELM) K
ERAEEENNSKERS  TX
HRTREERREENETES

BEENSRTANIHER

2011
More than More than
Total Within | year 2 years
contractual | year but less but less
Carrying  undiscounted or on than than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
SRAEN
FEARS | £/ IERE 2ENE
REEE REAE HEEX B2%ER B5FR SERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT  AR%Tr  ARETR  ARETR  AR%TR  AR%Tx
Bank and other loans T REMEF 3,200,343 3,583,464 1,286,297 1,103,831 1,124,688 68,648
Trade and other ERERR
payables EthERHE 1,363,016 1,363,016 1,363,016 - - -
Obligations under HEMEAR
finance lease 130,361 170,774 12,497 40,388 74,689 43,200
4,693,720 5,117,254 2,661,810 1,144,219 1,199,377 111,848
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

() RBEZER (K

29 BEEREERAAEBE @
)

2010
More than More than
Total Within | year 2 years
contractual | year but less but less
Carrying  undiscounted or on than than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
ARAEN
FHRR L | £ | N E 2ENE
HHEE nELR FEEXK {B2%RA B5ER SENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Bank and other loans ST REME K 1,916,100 2,162,770 886,894 421,645 710299 143932
Trade and other ERERR
payables E it TR 1,244,295 1,244,295 1,244,295 - - -
Obligations under HEMEARE
finance lease 31,075 62,400 3,200 3,200 9,600 46,400
3,191,470 3,469,465 2,134,389 424,845 719,899 190,332

EESBEEERQA
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)
(d) Interest rate risk
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group's borrowings
are disclosed in Notes 22.The Group has not used any forward contracts

or derivatives to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

It is estimated that a general increase of 100 basic points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease the Group's profit

after tax by the amount as shown below:

29 BBEREERAAEE (@

(d)

FxERER
AEEBZNFEREZERER
M2l & - AKBRBFERTM
BHAOEMTET A MEN KR
B o

fET AR SEMI00EES  £H

twHAEEETENER N AKER
REFEeERINSE2IMT

The Group
FEE

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBFTT

Effect on profit METE 24,791 12,175

(e) Fair values (e) AREE

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade and nReRREEEY  BHERRT
other receivables, and trade and other payables, the carrying amounts TEAR - FEMRER R R A M 3R I8 DA
approximate fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these REMERREMENFENS

financial instruments.

In respect of bank and other loans, receivables/obligations under finance
lease and long-term receivables, the carrying amounts are not materially
different from their fair values at 31 December 2011 and 2010. The fair
values are estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted

at current market interest rates for similar financial instruments.

Unlisted investments for which their fair values cannot be reliably

measured are stated at cost less impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend.
Further details are disclosed in Note 26(b).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform with current year's

presentation.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 201 |

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued the
following amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 3| December 2011 and which have not been

adopted in these financial statements.

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

Amendment to IFRS |, First-time adoption of | July 2011
International Financial Reporting Standards
— Severe hyperinflation and removal of
fixed dates for first-time adopters

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: | July 2011

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes | January 2012

— Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

Amendments to IAS I, Presentation of | July 2012
financial statements — Presentation of items

of other comprehensive income

30
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

S BT S R M @

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 201 | (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements | January 2013
IFRS 11, Joint arrangements | January 2013
IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities | January 2013
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement | January 2013
IAS 27, Separate financial statements (201 1) | January 2013
IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures | January 2013
Revised IAS |9, Employee benefits | January 2013
IFRIC 20, Stripping costs in the production | January 2013

phase of a surface mine

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: | January 2013
Disclosures — Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments: | January 2014
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

IFRS 9, Financial instruments | January 2015

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments and | January 2015
IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures

— Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standard and interpretations is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group'’s or the Company's results of

operations and financial position.
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Financial Summary

RREE
SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS fHBHEHGAREREERE
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 3| December
BZNABLEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®Tr AR%Tr AR%®TxR
Turnover WA 783717 1411713 2065685 3004933 4,240,275
Gross profit EF 319,551 583,557 775,180 [,164,143 1,450,891
Profit from operations & E 252,002 489,875 620,388 786244 1,091,320
Profit before taxation B % AT A1) 183,938 467,852 565,521 668,379 981,447
Profit and total comprehensive REFER
income for the year REWEEE 175,883 428,660 531,575 533,216 835,647
Attributable to: FE4f
Equity Shareholders of the Company ARRIERFE A 177,049 430,133 530,037 577,281 830,819
Non-controlling interests R R = (1,166) (1473) 1,538 (44,065) 4,828
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Financial Summary continued)
HBREE @

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF B HAHHBERREBEHE
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 3| December
BI2A31A8
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
RMB'0O0O  RMB000  RMB000  RMBO000  RMB'000
ARETT AR®TRT AR®ETT ARBTT AR%TxR

Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1538375 2415609 3,073,188 5415098 7,637,415
Total current assets MENEERE 506,792 394209 2,601,013 2219575 2,187,365
Total assets BEHRRE 2,045,167 2809818 567420l 7634673 9,824,780
Total current liabilities mEaEeE (801,336)  (1,224216)  (1,274772)  (2,086,894)  (2,562,974)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEABRABAEE 1243831 1585602 4399429 5547779 7,261,806
Total non-current liabilities FERBEELRA (447712)  (440726)  (574594) (1,181,228) (2,258,455)
Net assets BEFE 796,119 1,144,876 3,824,835 4366551 5,003,351
Total equity BaEwE 796,119 1144876 35824835 4366551 5,003,351
148 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Corporate Information (continued)
NEER @)

STOCK CODE
02168

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.yingdegases.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

information@yingdegas.com

HEADQUARTERS/PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 4313, Tower One
Times Square, Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY -1

Cayman Islands
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“Board”

"“Business Day”

“CAGR"

“China” or “PRC"

"Hebei Yingde"”

“Hengyang Valin”

the board of directors of our Company

a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong

Kong

Compond annual growth rate

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this
annual report and for geographical reference only and
except where the context requires, references in this annual
report to “China” and the "PRC” do not include Taiwan, the

Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

Hebei Yingde Gases Company Limited* (1L REREH
fR 2 7)), a company established in the PRC on 4 December

2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

Hengyang Hualing Lianzhaguan Company Limited* ( % %
ZEEEEMRAF ), a subsidiary of Hunan Valin Steel
Company Limited* (HiEZEZMERDBER QA ), a
company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange

[E=g)

(%A

[CAGRI

[ E

A&

S+

[EEZ]

15
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Definitions
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152

“Hengyang Yingde"

“HK$", “HKD" or

"HK dollars”

“Hong Kong" or “HK”

“Hong Kong

Companies

Ordinance”

“Hong Kong Stock

Exchange”

“Huai'an Yingda"

Definitions (continued)
EE @

Hengyang Yingde Gases Company Limited* (&[5 &R 8
AR

pursuant to a joint venture agreement between Yingde BV,

Al ) incorporated in the PRC on 23 December 2008

Hunan Yingde and Hengyang Valin, which is a joint venture

company owned as to 70% by us and 30% by Hengyang Valin

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong

Kong) (as amended from time to time)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Huai'an Yingda Gases Company Limited* (X &EEREH
R 2 7] ), a company established in the PRC on 26 January

2007 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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“Hunan Yingde”

“IFRS”

“independent

third party”

"

“Laiwu Yingde

“Listing Rules"”

“Nm?/hr”

"Prospectus”

Hunan Yingde Gases Company Limited* (#1212 R &8
fR 2 @]), a company established in the PRC on 29 October

2001 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

International Financial Reporting Standards

a person or entity which is not a connected person of our

Company

Laiwu Yingde Gases Company Limited* (REREREH

R 2 7] ), a company established in the PRC on 30 January

2007 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (as amended from time to

time)

normal cubic meter/hour

the prospectus of our Company dated 24 September 2009

Definitions (continued)
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Definitions (continued)

Bx @

“Renminbi” or “RMB”

“Rizhao Yingde"

“SAl Report”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Share Option

Scheme”

“United States”

or “US”

154

the lawful currency of the PRC

Rizhao Yingde Gases Company Limited* (B REEREH
R 2 @]), a company established in the PRC on 30 October

2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

the industry report dated |5 March 2011 entitled China
Industrial Gas Market Analysis published by Strategic Analysis

Inc.

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the

Laws of Hong Kong) (as amended from time to time)

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.000001 each

in the share capital of our Company

the share option scheme conditionally approved by our
shareholders on 12 September 2009 and approved and
adopted by the board of directors of our Company on |2
September 2009

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions

and all areas subject to its jurisdiction

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2011
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Definitions (continued)

BE @

“US$”, “USD” or United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United EZd ¥ Ern XEEEEE

“US dollars” States
“Yingde BVI" Yingde Gases Investment Limited* (BEREBREFRA [(BEGRE & BEAEREBEARA

Al ), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on BRES)] — R 2006F4H 188 &
18 April 2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our RERZESHEMA LN
Company and investment holding company in our Group AR RADAIMNEEN
BRARKAEENRE SR

B A

“Zhangjiagang Yingde” Zhangjiagang Yingde Gases Company Limited* (3R /& 12 [REXBREIR REXEABRBARA

KEEBMRAA]), a company established in the PRC on 3| Al » —RR2004F12A31
December 2004 and a subsidiary of our Company in which BERBRTMKLNHR
we own 75% of the equity interest 7l BARREHEE 5%
AERNHER
“Zhuhai Yingde” Zhuhai Yingde Gases Company Limited* (258 2R Z R 58 [KEREl B KERERABARLA
BR X&) ), a company established in the PRC on 8 April 2003 —fAM2003F4A8REH
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company BRKRRE - BARE
B2 BB A A
“Zibo Yingde” Zibo Yingde Gases Company Limited* (VR EREER DEBEE] & HERERBARA
A7), a company established in the PRC on 8 November — R 2006F 11 A8 &
2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company REKIHNAR C BREAA
AH 2 BB A A
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Definitions (continued)
EE @

In this annual report:

“Company”, “our Company”, “our”, “we" and “us"” refer to Yingde Gases Group
Company Limited BERBEEEMR AT, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 25 September
2007 and, except where the context otherwise requires, include all of its
subsidiaries or where the context refers to any time prior to its incorporation,
the business which its predecessors or the predecessors of its present

subsidiaries were engaged in and which were subsequently assumed by it;

“Group” means our Company and its subsidiaries from time to time; and

the terms "“associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”,
“controlling shareholder”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context

otherwise requires.

denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or entity, or vice versa,

and is provided for identification purposes only

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2011
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